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April 21, 2005

To Our Fellow Shareholders and Friends: /{ P

3,%*\ |
Near the end of 2004, our Board began a process to review a brood rfange of strc’reglc \ 2
alternatives for AmeriVest. As our Chairman stated af the time, we began the process )\,,/
not because we stopped believing in our small tenant strategy, which has performed
excephona”y well for our shareholders over the last few years, but because of dwo -
specific issues: the fierce competition for high quality office buildings and the valudtions

for these assets in the private market; and the increased costs of being a public company,
primarily due to the new Sarbanes-Oxley regulations and their disproportionate cost as a
percentage of our revenues for a company our size.

As we write this letter we are continuing that process and we hope to be in a position

to announce a specific direction resulting from that process by the time you read these

~words. Whichever direction our board decides to proceed, we are confident of one
thing. This action and every action we have taken from the first day in 1999 when we

assumed control of AmeriVest has been to build a company that could generate sustained

superior performance over the long term that would ultimately increase long-term

shareholder value.

Let's briefly review what we did in 2004 in furtherance of that original objective:

In January, we filed a shelf registration statement for $200 million of common

or preferred stock, allowing us to access the capital markets more quickly and
demonstrating we were serious about our growth and pursuing a way to fund that
growth going forward.

In March, we acquired Camelback Lakes Corporate Center, a 203,000 square foot
office building in Phoenix, Arizona. We sold four non-core office buildings in Texas;
another step towards improving the quality and focus of our real estate porifolio.

In March, we completed our first offering of common stock from our shelf registration
statement, raising more than $40 million in net equity to fund our continued growth.

In May, we acquired Hackberry View, an 114,598 square foot building in Dallas, Texas.
In August, we refinanced our debt on Camelback Lakes from a floating to a fixed rate
of interest, increasing our current costs but reducing our exposure to inferest rate risk,

consistent with our long-term strategy.

In September, we acquired the 152,600 square foot Parkway Centre Il office building in
Plano, Texas.




In October, we purchased the land underlying our Greenhill Park office building in
Dallas, Texas, replacing the escalating ground lease with a fee interest that stabilized
that property for the long term.

In November, we acquired the 109,062 square foot Hampton Court office building
in Dallas, Texas. Then, on November 22, we announced the board’s decision to
explore strategic clterncshves

Our commitment and our board’s commitment have always been to maximize
shareholder value over the long term. All the actions we took in 2004, including
hiring an experienced investment bank to assist us in our review of strategic
alternatives, were done with that single goal in mind.

So what happened? Why did our stock drop from an average of $6.76 the week
before our announcement in November to the low $5.00 range these past few
weeks?

We believe the announcement of our decision to review strategic alternatives, which
was designed to enhance shareholder value over the long-term, has imposed in

the marketplace and elsewhere a temporary shortterm mentality and focus on our
company. ‘ !

Normally, we take time to address the goals we set for ourselves last year and set
forth our goals for the following year. Llast year, we said we would keep growing,
increase our focus on small business customers, develop measurements for tenant
refention and customer satisfaction, maintain a historical perspective and have fun.
In summary, we grew, we kept our focus on our small customers, we developed
measures for tenant retention and, until recently had a lot of fun. Our performance,
unfortunately, did not meet our gocls. Although our eight-year annual total return
to shareholders was 20.0% through December 31, 2004, last year we returned a

~ _negative 3.48%, the worst in our peer group.

This year we start with a more general goal, fixing a course that will result in
maximizing shareholder value. Whether we find that can be done through a merger
or sale or through other means, we believe in our strategy and we believe that it has
the ability to generate long-term growth and long-term shareholder value.

Regardless of the temporary shortferm environment we find ourselves in at the
moment, we remain deeply committed to this company, to our shareholders, to our
employees and to our vendors for the long term.

Thank you for your support,

ur _ S A

William Atkins Charles K. Knight
Chairman and CEO President and COO
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This Shareholder Letter includes financial information prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and set forth in the Company’s financial statements, as well as non-GAAP financial measures of
the Company’s performance that we believe are useful to an evaluation of the Company’s results of operations. An
explanation of the non-GAAP financial measures used in this report, together with a presentation of the most directly
comparable GAAP financial measures and a reconciliation of the differences between the non-GAAP financial
measures and the most directly comparable GAAP measures, is set forth below.

Calculation of Funds From Operations (FFO)

Year 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Net {loss} income $(5,902,952)| $(1,980,420}| $(157,274) | $1,488,493 | $2,676,724 $968,748 $(317,406) ${120,452)
Depreciation and
amorlization expense 14,157,113 | 7,023,923 3,362,508 2,244,435 1,205,795 1,033,450 751,592 570,307
Share of depreciation of
unconsolidated affiliate - 84,860 46,087 29,634 59,635 - - -
Gain on sale of real estate (574,276) - - (1,156,445) | (2,556,839} (720,712) - -
Expenses associated _ _ ~ _ _ _
with debt financing - 321178
Tolal FFO $3,251,321 $1,385315  $1,281,486  $7553
Weighted average
common 5h°fes 22,464,707 14,907,011 9,501,117 4,801,307 2,495,219 1,882,232 1,538,403 1,397,270
outstanding - diluted '

5034 1$0.34 $0.56  s0.68

Non-GAAP Financial Measures — Funds from Operations (FFO) is a non-GAAP financial measure. FFO is defined
as net income or loss, computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), excluding
gains or losses from sale of properties, plus real estate related depreciation and amortization and after adjustments
for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. We believe that FFO is helpful to investors as a measure of the
performance of an equity REIT because it facilitates an understanding of the operations performance of its properties
without giving effect to real estate depreciation and amortization, which assume that the value of real estate assets
diminishes predictably over fime. Since real estate values have hlstorlco"y risen or fallen with market conditions,
we believe that FFO provides a more meaningful and accurate indication of our performance. We compute FFO
in accordance with standards established by the Board of Governors of the National Association of Real Estate
Investment Trusts (NAREIT), which may not be comparable to FFO reported by other REITs that do not define the term in
accordance with the current NAREIT definition or that interpret the current NAREIT definition differently than we do. FFO
does not represent cash generated from operating activities determined by GAAP and should not be considered as an
alternative to net income or loss (determined in accordance with GAAP) as an indication of our financial performance
or to cash flows from operating activities (determined in accordance with GAAP) as a measure of our liquidity, nor
is it indicative of funds available to fund our cash needs, including our ability to make cash distributions. FFO may
include funds that may not be available for our management's discretionary use due to requirements to conserve funds
for capital expenditures, debt repayments, property acquisitions and other commitments and uncertainties.
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Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements And Cautionary Statements

This annual report includes “‘forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 274 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. All statements
other than statements of historical facts included in or incorporated by reference into this annual report,
including statements regarding our expected financial position, business strategy, plans and objectives of
management for future operations, expected capital expenditures, expected funding sources, planned
investments and forecasted dates, are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are
based on our current expectations, beliefs, assumptions, estimates and projections about the industry and
markets in which we operate. Words such as “‘expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,”
“seeks,” “estimates” and variations of such words and similar expressions are often used to identify forward-
looking statements. Although we believe that the expectations and assumptions reflected in the forward-
looking statements are reasonable, these statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve
certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions, which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond
our control. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed, forecasted
or implied in such forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update publicly any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by
applicable law.

Additional cautionary statements concerning important factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from our expectations are disclosed in this annual report, including the statements contained in
the “Risk Factors” section below. All written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or
persons acting on our behalf subsequent to the date of this annual report are expressly qualified in their
entirety by such cautionary statements.

PART 1
ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Overview

M«

As used herein, “we”, “us”, “our” and “the Company” refer to AmeriVest Properties Inc., a
Maryland corporation. We were incorporated in the State of Maryland in 1999. We are a fully-
integrated, self-administered and self-managed Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”) and primarily
invest in and operate commercial office buildings in select markets and lease the commercial office
buildings to small and medium size tenants. At December 31, 2004, we owned 30 properties, which
included an aggregate of 2,732,957 square feet. The Company’s core portfolio (which excludes assets in
which less than 100% and smaller office buildings primarily leased to the State of Texas) included 16
properties totaling 2,450,854 square feet, at December 31, 2004, located in metropolitan Denver,
Dallas, Phoenix and Indianapolis. We have elected to be taxed as a REIT for federal income tax
purposes and generally will not be subject to federal income tax if we distribute at least 90% of our
taxable income and comply with a number of organizational and operational requirements.

Business Strategy

Our primary business objective is to achieve sustainable long-term growth in cash flow and
portfolio value to maximize shareholder value. We intend to achieve this objective by focusing our
efforts on the acquisition, rehabilitation and development of multi-tenant office buildings with a
targeted average smaller tenant size (generally between 2,000 and 4,000 square feet) in select cities.

We believe that office space for small to medium size businesses is a large and underserved
market. According to data compiled by the Office of Advocacy of the U.S. Small Business
Administration, 89% of all U.S. businesses employed fewer than 20 employees. As a result, we believe
that many businesses have office space requirements of no more than 4,000 square feet.




Small to medium size businesses often have specific needs and limitations that are different from
larger businesses. For example, small and medium size businesses generally cannot afford large
corporate staffs to manage their office leasing requirements. These businesses have needs similar to
larger firms, such as access to cutting edge technology, conference facilities, high quality
telecommunications services and other amenities, but may not have a comparable budget. Our strategy
is to focus on providing an office product targeted to this large market and its unmet needs in a cost
effective manner. The key elements of our strategy are described below.

Provide a Superior, Consistent Product

We provide amenities for the small and medium size businesses in our office properties that
usually only larger companies would be able to obtain, such as conference rooms with the latest
telecommunications and presentation equipment, high levels of common area and tenant finish,
including well-designed, pre-built move-in ready space, and depending on the location, various other .
technology and service amenities that cater to smaller tenants. Upon acquisition, we evaluate the
building’s architectural design, common- areas, technology and amenities relative to the needs of our
targeted small business tenant. Based on the results of this evaluation, a design intent package and
capital improvement budget is established for each acquisition which will dictate the improvements. to -
be made to the property over the short and long term. Although the specific improvements and
amenities are customlzed all are demgned to enhance the experience for the tenant.

The design and technology features incorporated into some of our buildings include keyless entry
card systems to allow secure access 24 hours a day to individual suites, surveillance camera systems, and
common area conference rooms with the latest telecommunications and presentation equipment. Entry
lobbies may feature touchpad electronic directories and, where possible, our buildings are engineered
to provide control of heating and air conditioning in individual tenant suites. Many properties include a
unique art program in common areas and corridors. Signage for tenant suites in many buildings allows
for the tenant’s individual logo to be incorporated on a common background. Many properties are
wired to offer high speed voice and data service from multiple telecom providers. Over time we plan to
add some of these and add1t10na1 amenities to all of our buildings as market demand and capital
constraints dlctate

Streamline the Lgdsing Process

We provide our cliénts with a leasing philosophy that is designed to meet the unique needs of a
small to medium size tenant with limited real estate expertise. We operate our multi-tenant buildings
under a “no-hassle” leasing experience, using a simplified standard lease that has been designed to be
sensitive to both tenant’s and landlord’s rights. The lease transaction starts with our rate matrix, a
standardized menu of rental rates based on lease terms and market lease rates for our submarkets,
which is revised by management periodically. This rate matrix reduces negotiating time and provides a
reference point for lease negotiations. We also incorporate a high quality standard tenant finish
package, greatly reducing the time to design and build out finished space. In some buildings, we build
completely finished suites in varying sizes on a purely speculative basis. Our streamlined process greatly.
reduces negotiation and space planning time and allows the tenant to move into its space sooner and
with less aggravation than is typical in the leasing process, reducing the lease transaction time and cost
for the tenant and us. :

Provide a High Level of Service

We have developed and employ a positive, service-oriented mentality to our tenants. Our core
buildings feature a local “Tenant Relations Advocate” whose job description is to interface regularly
with all tenants and maximize tenant retention. The Tenant Relations Advocate is dedicated to tenant
issues with a smgular focus on tenant retention. The Tenant Relations Advocate personifies our




service-oriented mentality and is available to resolve minor tenant service complaints before they
develop into major issues.

Our Tenant Relations Advocates work with team leaders for each region, who in turn report to a
senior manager in our Denver headquarters, providing direct and regular feedback on tenant concerns.
We believe that our customer-focused management will improve our tenant retention rates over the
long-term.

Target Select Cities

We have focused on employing our strategy in buildings or projects containing at least 100,000
square feet, within select cities where we hope to build meaningful multi-property portfolios. We target
cities that possess enough total office square footage to offer the possibility of multiple acquisitions and
liquidity in the event of a desired sale, a healthy number of small businesses and positive growth
dynamics. Historically, in order to maximize management efficiencies, we have focused on markets in
relatively close proximity to our headquarters in Denver, Colorado. Currently, we have defined our
target markets as metropolitan Denver, Dallas, Phoenix and Indianapolis. As we grow, we plan to
expand our radius to include cities within the United States and Canada that possess our desired
characteristics.

As a result of our focused strategy, we believe that our properties provide office space that is
particulasly attractive for small to medium size tenants. By executing on our strategy we believe we
have been able to maintain high occupancy rates while still maintaining strong rent per square foot
trends in our core markets.

Significant Transactions

2005 Transactions

On March 15, 2005, the Company amended its Secured Facility and Unsecured Facility with
KeyBank due to the Company not being in compliance with its leverage, interest coverage and fixed
charge coverage covenants required by the Secured Facility. The amendment to the Secured Facility
involved: (i) a waiver for the events of non-compliance, noted above, as of December 31, 2004,

(ii) changes to the debt covenant calculations to set them at the same levels as those previously
established for the Unsecured Facility, (iii) mandatory repayments of at least $2.5 million by July 1,
2005 and at least $10.0 million by September 1, 2005, (iv) removal of the revolving feature of the
Secured Facility, and (v) the elimination of the obligation of the lender to make any further loans
under the Secured Facility. The amendment to the Unsecured Facility involved: (i) a waiver for the
events of non-compliance as of December 31, 2004 due to cross default provisions with the Secured
Facility (ii) moving up the maturity date from November 12, 2007 to April 1, 2006, (iii) mandatory
repayments of at least $5.0 million by September 2005 and at least $10.0 million by January 2006,
(iv) removal of the revolving feature of the Unsecured Facility, (v) a requirement that any further
borrowings, including borrowings to pay dividends, be subject to the approval of the lender in its sole
and absolute discretion, (vi) a limitation on the incurrence of any other indebtedness by the Company
without the prior written consent of the lender and (vii) a requirement that all net proceeds from a
property sale, refinancing or other capital transaction be used to pay down any amounts outstanding.

On March 9, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors suspended the payment of the common
dividend for the first quarter of 2005. The Board determined that suspension of the dividend would
maximize the Company’s ability to complete a strategic transaction in a timely manner. (See “2004
Transactions” below.) The Board intends to review and consider the resumption of a dividend for the
second quarter of 2005, or thereafter, based on a number of factors, including the completion of a
strategic transaction or other significant capital event, such as refinancing or asset sales, the Company’s
financial results, capital resources and liquidity needs at that time.




On March 2, 2005, the Company completed a Deed-In-Lieu Agreement to return our 13 non-core
Texas State Buildings to the lender. The properties, consisting of 222,542 square feet, were leased
primarily to various agencies of the State of Texas and are located in Temple, Clint, El Paso,
Hempstead, Lubbock, Marshall, Columbus, Paris, Mission, Arlington, Bellville and Amarillo Texas. The
buildings secured a loan in the amount of $5.6 million, bearing interest at 7.66% through August 1,
2028 and had a net book value of $5.2 million (excluding certain deposits maintained by the lender),
subsequent to an impairment charge of $1.2 million recognized during the fourth quarter of 2004.

2004 Transactions

On November 22, 2004, the Company announced that it had retained Bear, Stearns & Co., Inc. to
assist our Board of Directors in undertaking a review of a broad range of strategic alternatives for the
Company. These alternatives include identifying an institutional capital partner to assist in the
Company’s growth going forward, a sale or recapitalization of all or a portion of the Company’s
properties, the potential sale or merger of the Company, and other possible transactions designed to
enhance shareholder value. With the assistance of Bear Stearns, the Board is evaluating the Company’s
strategic alternatives; however, such an evaluation may not result in a transaction of any kind.

On November 12, 2004, the Company acquired the Hampton Court office building. Hampton
Court is located in Dallas, Texas and contains approximately 108,200 square feet. The purchase price
for Hampton Court was $16.3 million, which was funded with $8.4 million of cash and the assumption
of a $7.9 million non-recourse five-year mortgage loan from a securitized lender.

In October 2004, KeyBank National Association (KeyBank) assumed and amended the Company’s
unsecured credit facility (Unsecured Facility) from Fleet Bank of Boston, increasing the immediate
availability from $30 million to $40 million, and modifying other terms. KeyBank also assumed our
secured credit facility (Secured Facility). All references to the Secured Facility or Unsecured Facility
prior to this date pertain to the previous agreement with Fleet.

On October 25, 2004, the Company acquired the 5.2 acres of land underlying its Greenhill Park
office property in Addison, Texas for $14.5 million in cash. The Greenhill Park building, purchased by
the Company in December 2003, was subject to a ground lease with 80 years remaining on the term.

On September 13, 2004, the Company acquired the Parkway Centre III office building. The
Parkway Centre III is located in Plano, Texas and contains approximately 152,600 square feet. The
purchase price of $23.4 million was funded with $5.5 million of cash and a $15.2 million non-recourse
five-year mortgage. The remaining $2.7 million of acquisition funds came from tax-deferred exchange
proceeds from the disposition of our Texas Bank Buildings in March 2004.

On May 7, 2004, the Company acquired the Hackberry View office property located in Irving,
Texas and contains approximately 114,600 square feet. The purchase price was $16.8 million, which was
paid with approximately $12.2 million from the assumption of the existing first and second mortgage
loans and the balance in cash.

On March 16, 2004, the Company acquired the Camelback Lakes office building. Camelback Lakes
is located in Phoenix, Arizona and contains approximately 203,000 square feet on 12.04 acres of land.
The purchase price for Camelback Lakes was $32.0 million, which was paid with $21.0 millioni from our
Secured Facility and the balance from our Unsecured Facility (see Item 2. Properties—Mortgage Loans,
Notes Payable and Lines of Credit). In August 2004, the Company refinanced the property with
$21.0 million of debt. The debt consists of two notes maturing in September 2014.

On March 16, 2004, the Company sold its Texas Bank Buildings for $4.1 million. The four
properties are located in Clifton, Georgetown, Henderson and Mineral Wells, Texas, contain an
aggregate of 60,095 square feet and had an aggregate net book value of approximately $3.2 million at
disposition.




2003 Transactions

On December 4, 2003, the Company acquired the Greenhill Park office building. Greenhill Park is
located in Addison, Texas and contains approximately 252,000 square feet. Greenhill Park was subject
to a ground lease. See “2004 Transactions” for a discussion of the purchase of the land underlying the
building. The purchase price for Greenhill Park was $10.5 million, which was paid with $5.3 million
from the Secured Facility and the balance in cash from a portion of the proceeds from our 2003 public
offering.

On October 7, 2003, the Company acquired the Scottsdale Norte office building. Scottsdale Norte
is located in Scottsdale, Arizona and contains approximately 79,000 square feet on 5.45 acres of land.
The purchase price for Scottsdale Norte was $12.3 million, which was paid with $6.6 million from the
assumption of the existing loan from Southern Farm Bureau Life Insurance Company and the balance
in cash from a portion of the proceeds from our 2003 public offering.

On September 10, 2003, the Company acquired the Financial Plaza office building. Financial Plaza
is located in Mesa, Arizona and contains approximately 311,000 square feet on approximately 6.07 acres
of land. The purchase price for Financial Plaza was $39.0 million, which was paid with $24.8 million
from the assumption of the existing loan from Allstate Life Insurance Company and the balance in
cash from a portion of the proceeds from our 2003 public offering.

During 2003, the Company completed the construction of an approximately 18,000 square foot
building adjacent to the existing Keystone Office Park in Indianapolis, Indiana for approximately
$1.3 million. This building was constructed to accommodate the expansion needs of some of the
existing tenants as well as market demand. The building opened for occupancy in August.

On February 6, 2003, the Company acquired the Southwest Gas office building. The Southwest
Gas Building is located in Phoenix, Arizona and contains approximately 148,000 square feet on 7.38
acres of land. The purchase price for the Southwest Gas Building was $17.0 million, which was paid
with $11.9 million from the Secured Facility and the balance from a short-term loan from Fleet
National Bank. This short-term loan was refinanced with the Unsecured Facility.

2002 Transactions

On November 25, 2002, the Company acquired the Chateau Plaza office building. Chateau Plaza is
located in Dallas, Texas and contains approximately 171,000 square feet on one acre of land. The
purchase price for Chateau Plaza was $22.0 million, which was paid with $15.4 million from the
Secured Fleet and the balance paid in cash from a portion of the proceeds from our 2002 public
offering.

On November 12, 2002, the Company acquired the Centerra office building. Centerra is located in
Denver, Colorado and contains approximately 186,000 square feet on 1.15 acres of land. The purchase
price for Centerra was $18.7 million, which was paid with $13.1 million from the Secured Facility and
the balance paid in cash from a portion of the proceeds from our 2002 public offering.

On September 6, 2002, the Company acquired 2.55 acres of undeveloped land, adjacent to
Keystone Office Park in Indianapolis, Indiana, from Sheridan Realty Partners, L.P, an affiliate, for
$320,000. The purchase price was determined based on the fair market value of the land and was paid
through the issuance of 52,893 shares of our common stock ($6.05 per share). In late 2002, the
Company commenced construction of an approximately 18,000 square foot building on this land.

On September 5, 2002, the Company acquired the Parkway Centre II office building. Parkway
Centre II is located in Plano, Texas and contains approximately 152,000 square feet on 6.4 acres of
land. The purchase price for Parkway Centre II was $22.0 million, which was paid with $17.0 million




from the assumption of the existing loan.from J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securiti€s
Corp. and the balance paid in cash from a portion of the proceeds from our 2002 public offering.

2001 n'ansactlons

On December 21, 2001 the Company acquired the Kellogg Building. The Kellogg Building is
located in Littleton, Colorado and contains approximately 112,000 square feet on five acres of land.
The purchase price for the Kellogg Building was $13.6 million, which was paid with $9.5 million from
the proceeds of a loan from US Bank National Association and the balance paid i in cash from a
portlon of the proceeds from our 2001 public offering.

On December 6, 2001, the Company sold an 80% tenancy-in-common ‘interest in the Panorama
Falls biiilding to a long-term investor affiliated with a large shareholder. Panorama Falls is located in
Englewood, Colorado and contains approximately 60,000 square feet on six acres of land. The sales -
price for the interest in Panorama Falls was $4.9 million payable as follows: (i) $2.2 million to KeyBank
National Association to pay down a portion of the mortgage loan, (ii) assumption of 80% of the
remaining mortgage loan in the amount of $2.4 million, and (iii} the remainder of $304,268 in cash, less
closmg costs.

On November 19, 2001, the Company acquired the Arrowhead Fountains office building.
Arrowhead Fountains is located in Peoria, Arizona and contains approximately 96,000 square feet on
five acres of land. The purchase price for Arrowhead Fountains was $12.8 million, which was paid with
$9.3 million from the assumption of the existing loan from Nationwide Life Insurance Company and
the balance paid in cash from a portion of the proceeds from our 2001 public offering.

On October 23, 2001, the Company sold its office building in Odessa, Texas for $132, 500 The sale
resulted in a gain on sale of $12,747. ‘

On June 1, 2001, the Company sold the Gﬂtedge offlce building in Appleton, W1scons1n for. .
$3.7 million. The sale resulted in a gain on sale of approximately $1.1 million. The cash proceeds from
this transaction of $458,030 were used to complete a tax-deferred exchange under Section 1031 of the
Internal Revenue Code.

On April 1, 2001, the Company acquired from Sheridan Investments, LLC, an affiliate, 100% of
the ownership interests of Sheridan Plaza at Inverness, LLC. Sheridan Plaza at Inverness, LLC owns
two office buildings (which are known as AmeriVest Plaza at Inverness) located in Englewood,
Colorado containing approximately 119,000 square feet on 6.7 acres of land. The purchase price was
$22.9 million and consisted of: (i) $705,135 for our 9.639% preferred membership interest in Sheridan
Investments, LLC, the owner of all of the membership interests in Sheridan Plaza at Inverness LLC,
which was transferred back to Sheridan Investments, LLC; (ii) $6.5 million paid with 1,057,346 shares
of our common stock and the cash proceeds from the sale of the Giltedge building; (iii) assumption of
the mortgage loan in the amount of $15.0 million; and (iv) assumption of other 11ab111t1es in the amount
of $761,178.

The acquisition was structured as a tax-deferred exchange of the Giltedge office building under
Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code. Due to the related party nature of this transaction,
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requlre us to record this acquisition at its
historical net book value. The difference between the purchase price and the historical net book value
was $4,507,557 and has been recorded as a non-cash dividend during 2001.

2000 Transactions

On September 29, 2000, we acquired a 9.639% preferred membership interest in Sheridan -
Investments, LLC, the sole owner of Sheridan Plaza at Inverness, LLC. The purchase price for the
interest was $658,918, which we paid by issuing 131,784 shares of common stock and 65,892 common




stock purchase warrants at $5.00 per share. This interest was transferred back to Sheridan Investments,
LLC in April 2001 as partial consideration for the remaining interest in Sheridan Plaza at Inverness,
LLC.

On August 31, 2000, we acquired Sheridan Center, a three-building office complex in southeast
Denver, Colorado for $9.6 million. The buildings contain 141,008 square feet on 3.74 acres of land.
Funds for closing included approximately $1.8 million held in escrow and on deposit as part of the
tax-deferred exchange under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code from the sale of the
self-storage facilities, together with mortgage financing and a portion of the proceeds from our 2000
public offering.

On August 25, 2000, we sold four self-storage facilities in the metropolitan Denver, Colorado area
for $8.4 million. This sale resulted in a gain on sale of approximately $2.6 million. The net proceeds of
approximately $1.8 million were used to complete a tax-deferred exchange under Section 1031 of the
Internal Revenue Code for office building assets.

On May 25, 2000, we acquired Panorama Falls for $5.9 million. Funds for closing included
approximately $514,000 being held in escrow and on deposit as part of the tax-deferred exchange under
Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code from the sale of the Broadway Property completed in
December 1999, together with mortgage financing and short-term financing, which was partially repaid
in August 2000 with proceeds from our 2000 public offering.

Competition

The leasing of real estate is highly competitive. We compete for tenants in our markets primarily
on the basis of property location, rents, services provided and the design and condition of
improvements. In addition, we also experience competition when attempting to acquire or divest
ownership in real estate, including competition from larger and better capitalized domestic and foreign
financial institutions, other REITS, life insurance companies, pension trusts, partnerships and individual
investors. This competition could limit our ability to lease our properties, increase or maintain rental
rates, or secure attractive investment opportunities. We believe that our niche focus on multi-tenant
office buildings with smaller average tenant sizes will improve our ability to compete in the
marketplace.

Employees

We currently employ approximately 60 individuals that provide real estate operations, leasing,
financial and accounting, acquisition and marketing expertise. We consider our relationship with our
employees to be good.

Environmental Matters

Under various federal, state and local laws and regulations, an owner or operator of real property
may be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of certain hazardous or toxic substances on that
property. These laws often impose such liability regardless of whether the owner caused or knew of the
presence of hazardous or toxic substances and regardless of whether the storage of those substances
was in violation of a tenant’s lease. Furthermore, the costs of remediation or removal of those
substances may be substantial, and the presence of hazardous or toxic substances, or the failure to
promptly remediate those substances, may adversely affect the owner’s ability to sell the property or to
borrow money using the property as collateral. In connection with the ownership and operation of the
properties, we may be potentially liable for such costs.

We have obtained an environmental assessment of each of our properties. These environmental
assessments have not revealed any environmental conditions that management believes will subject us




to material liability. In addition, we have not been, nor do we have knowledge that any of the previous
owners of the properties have been, notified by any governmental authority of any material
noncompliance, liability or claim relating to hazardous or toxic substances or other environmental
substances in connection with any of the properties. Although we have obtained environmental
assessments of the properties, and although we are not aware of any notifications by any governmental
authority of any material noﬁc’:bmpliance, it is possible that our assessments do not reveal all
environmental liabilities or that there are material environmental liabilities of which we are unaware.
For a description of pending legal proceedings involving environmental issues, see “Legal Proceedings.”

After the acquisition of the Sheridan Center buildings in Denver, we embarked on an asbestos
remediation program in accordance with applicable federal and state requirements, using licensed
contractors to remove, wherever accessible or otherwise required, asbestos-containing materials in the
buildings, including ceiling tiles, drywall joint compound, wood and metal fire doors, wall texture,
mudded pipe elbows and valves, thermal systems insulation, floor tile and mastic and boiler insulation.
Most of the remediation has been completed, except for one building, which is expected to be
completed over the next few years as tenants vacate spaces, allowing access to the asbestos materials.

Additional Information and Code of Ethics

Our website is http://www.AMVproperties.com. We make available free of charge, on or through
our web site, our annual, quarterly, and current reports, as well as any amendments to these reports, as
soon as reasonably practicable after electronically filing these reports with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The reference to our web site does not incorporate by reference the information
contained in the web site and such information should not be considered a part of this report. We have
adopted a code of ethics and business conduct applicable to our Board and officers and employees. A
copy of our code of ethics and business conduct is available through our web site. In addition, copies of
the code of ethics and business conduct can be obtained, free of charge, upon written request to
Investor Relations, 1780 South Bellaire Street, Suite 100, Denver, Colorado 80222.

Risk Factors
Our access to capital may be extreniely limited and may affect our ability to execute our business plan.

As a result of the amendments to our Secured Facility and Unsecured Facility entered into on
March 15, 2005, our ability to borrow additional amounts under the Secured Facility has been
terminated and our ability to incur additional borrowings under the Unsecured Facility is subject to the
approval of the lender in its sole and absolute discretion. Moreover, the amendments to the Unsecured
Facility restrict our ability to incur any additional indebtedness from any other party without the prior
written consent of the lender. To the extent that we are unable to borrow additional funds, we may be
unable to make any additional acquisitions of office properties and could be limited in our ability to
fund tenant improvements or make other necessary or desirable portfolio capital expenditures unless
we issue additional equity in the Company or sell one or more of our existing properties. In addition,
we would be dependent upon cash flow from our operations to cover these capital expenditures and
our corporate operating expenses. As a result, there can be no assurance that we will be able to
execute our-business plan, and our limited access to capital could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and our operations.

Our decision to actively pursue strategic alternatives may affect our ability to execute our business
plan, result in unanticipated costs, and distract management.

On November 22, 2004, we announced that our Board of Directors would undertake a review of a
broad range of strategic alternatives for the company, including the identification of an institutional
capital partner to assist in the company’s growth going forward, a sale or recapitalization of all or a




portion of the company’s properties, the potential sale or merger of the company and other possible
transactions designed to enhance shareholder value. As of the date of this report, we are continuing to
review and will pursue all viable strategic alternatives.

As a result of our review, and any pursuit, of strategic alternatives, we face considerable
uncertainty. This uncertainty may disrupt our business operations and may result in the loss of business
opportunities we would otherwise pursue. Our management team may be distracted from the
day-to-day operations of our business as a result of this uncertainty and some members of management
may decide to leave their employment with us. This distraction or loss of services could have a material
adverse effect on our operations. Finally, we have incurred and expect to continue to incur significant
costs for financial, advisory, legal and other consulting services expended in reviewing and pursuing
strategic alternatives. : :

Our variable rate debt subjects us to interest rate risk.

At December 31, 2004, approximately $57.8 million, or 24%, of our total debt was at variable rates
ranging from 275 to 350 basis points over LIBOR. The weighted-average interest rate on this variable
rate debt was approximately 5.3% at December 31, 2004. At December 31, 2004, approximately
$32.9 million of this debt was maturing in 2005 and the remaining $24.9 million matures in 2007 (see
“Future Sources of Capital” for information on the amendments to the Secured and Unsecured
Facilities). Increases in interest rates could increase our interest expense, which would adversely affect
net earnings and cash available for payment of our debt obligations and distributions to our
stockholders.

We face a competitive market, which could limit our ability to lease our properties or secure attractive
investment opportunities,

Our business strategy contemplates expansion through acquisition. The commercial real estate
industry is highly competitive, and we compete with substantially larger companies, including
substantially larger REIT, for the acquisition, development and operation of properties. Some of these
companies are national or regional operators with far greater resources than we have. As a result, we
may not be able or have the opportunity to make suitable investments on favorable terms in the future.
Competition in a particular area also could adversely affect our ability to lease our properties or to
increase or maintain rental rates. Thus, the presence of these competitors may impede the continuation
and development of our business. ‘

We may not be able to pay dividends to our stockholders regularly.

Our ability to pay dividends in the future depends on our ability to operate profitably and to
generate cash from our operations in excess of debt service obligations and required capital
expenditures. Because we have had to finance our growth, we have not been able to generate sufficient
cash from our operations to cover all these obligations and have had to fund certain capital
expenditures from external sources, including borrowings and equity offerings. The payment of
dividends is in the sole discretion of our Board of Directors. On March 9, 2005, we suspended our
dividend payment for the first quarter of 2005. Our Board will review and consider the resumption of a
dividend on our common stock for the second quarter of 2005, or thereafter, based on a number of
factors, including the completion of a strategic transaction or other significant capital event, such as a
refinancing or asset sales, the Company’s financial results, capital resources and liquidity needs at that
time. We cannot assure you that we will be able to resume the payment of dividends or if resumed, to
pay dividends consistently with historical payments. The amendments to our lines of credit described
above precluded any further indebtedness without the consent of our lender for any purpose, including
the payment of dividends.




. Our debt level may have a negative impact on our income and our ability to pay dividends.

We have incurred indebtedness in connection with the acquisition of our properties, and we may
incur new indebtedness in the future in connection with our acquisition, development and operating
activities. At December 31, 2004, we had approximately $236.6 million of long-term indebtedness, of
which approximately $53.5 million in the aggregate is due in 2005 and 2006 (see “Future Sources of
Capital” for information on the amendments to the Secured and Unsecured Facilities). As a result of
our use of debt, we are subject to the risks normally associated with debt financing, including:

* that our cash ﬂow will be msuff1c1ent to make requ1red payments of principal and interest;

° that we will be unable to refinance some or all of our indebtedness or that any reﬁnancmg will
not be on terms as favorable as those of the existing indebtedness;

° that required payments on mortgages and on our other indebtedness are not reduced 1f the
economic performance of any property declines;

* that debt service obligations will reduce funds available for distribution to our stockholders; and
* that any default on our indebtedness could result in acceleration of those obligations.

If the economic 'peﬁOMance of any of our properties declines, our ability to make debt service
‘payments would be adversely affected. If a property is mortgaged to secure payment of indebtedness
and we are unable to meet mortgage payments, we may lose that property to lender foreclosure with a
consequent loss of income and asset value.

We do not have a policy limiting the amount of debt that we may incur; however, our Secured
Facility limits our total liabilities to; 70% of gross assets, as calculated in accordance with the loan
agreement. Our total liabilities to total market capitalization ratio was approximately 62% at
December 31, 2004. Our leverage levels may make it difficult to obtain any additional financing based
on our current poi‘tfoh'oo_r to refinance existing debt on favorable terms or at all. Our leverage levels
also may adversely affect the market value of our stock if we are perceived as more risky than our
peers.

Some of our buildings are suhjéct to special income tax considerations, which could result in
substantial tax liability upon their sale.

If we sell any of our Sheridan Center buildings before 2006 (ten years after the original acquisition
date of the property or the property exchanged for that property), we will be required to pay tax at the
highest applicable corporate rate on the excess of the buildings’ fair market value at the effective time
of our REIT election over its ad]usted basis at such time (or, if lesser, the excess of the fair market
value of the building at the t1me of the sale over its adjusted basis at the time of the sale).

Because we used proceeds from the sale of a small office building in Wisconsin to purchase .
AmeriVest Plaza in an exchange qualifying under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code, we may .
~ also be required to hold' AmeriVest Plaza until 2006 in order to avoid corporate tax on the appreciation
of the exchanged property as of the effective date of our REIT election. If we are subject to tax on any
such gain at the highest corporate rate, the amount of this corporate tax could be substantial. We may -
not have sufficient cash available to pay the corporate taxes resulting from the sale of these properties.

Because we used proceeds from the sale of our Texas Bank Buildings to purchase Parkway
Centre III in an eXChange qualifying under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code, we may also be
required to hold Parkway Centre III until 2007 in order to avoid corporate tax on the appreciation of
the exchanged property as of the effective date of our REIT election. If we are subject to tax on any
such gain at the highest corporate rate, the amount of this corporate tax could be substantial. We may
not have sufficient cash available to pay the corporate taxes resulting from the sale of these properties.
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New developments and acquisitions may fail to perform as we expect.

Over the last few years, we have focused our efforts on the acquisition and redevelopment of
multi-tenant office buildings. Subject to the results of our strategic alternatives review and the
availability of capital, we may continue to seek to selectively develop and acquire office properties. In
deciding whether to acquire or develop a particular property, we make assumptions regarding the
expected future performance of that property. In particular, we estimate the return on our investment
based on expected occupancy and rental rates. If the property is unable to achieve the expected
occupancy and rental rates, it may fail to perform as we expected in analyzing our investment. When
we acquire a property, we often reposition or redevelop that property with the goal of increasing
profitability. Our estimate of the costs of repositioning or redeveloping an acquired property may prove
inaccurate, which may result in our failure to meet our profitability goals. Additionally, we may acquire
new properties not fully leased and the cash flow from existing operations may be insufficient to pay
the operating expenses and debt service associated with that property until the property is fully leased.
If one or more of these new properties do not perform as expected or we are unable to successfully
integrate new properties into our existing operations, our financial performance may be adversely
affected.

- Development and construction risks could adversely affect our profitability.

We are currently improving several of our properties and may develop new properties in the
future. Our renovation, redevelopment, development and related construction activities may subject us
to the following risks:

* We may be unable to obtain, or suffer delays in obtaining, necessary zoning, land-use, building,
occupancy and other required governmental permits and authorizations, which could result in
increased costs or our abandonment of these projects.

* We may incur construction costs for a property that exceed our original estimates due to
increased costs for materials or labor or other costs, such as asbestos or mold abatement, which
we did not anticipate.

* We may not be able to obtain financing on favorable terms, which may make us unable to
proceed with our development activities.

* We may be unable to complete construction and lease-up of a property on schedule, which could
result in increased debt service expense or construction costs.

Additionally, the time frame required for development, construction and lease-up of these
properties means that we may have to wait years for a significant cash return. Because we are required
to make cash distributions to our stockholders to maintain our REIT tax status, if the cash flow from
operations or refinancing is not sufficient, we may be forced to borrow additional money to fund such
distributions.

Failure to succeed in new markets may limit our growth.

We may make selected acquisitions outside our current market areas from time to time as
appropriate opportunities arise. Our historical core experience is in metropolitan Denver, Dallas,
Phoenix and Indianapolis, and we may not be able to operate successfully in other market areas new to
us. We may be exposed to a variety of risks if we choose to enter into new markets. These risks
include:

* a lack of market knowledge and understanding of the local economies;

* an inability to identify acquisition or development opportunities;
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* an inability to attract tenants to our properties in these new markets;
* an inability to obtain construction trades people; and
* an unfamiliarity with local goveminent and permitting procedures.

Any of these factors could adversely affect the profitability of projects.outside our current markets
and limit the success.of our acquisition, development and leasing strategy.
Real estate investments areinhereﬁtly risky, which could adversely affect our profitability and our
ability to make distributions to our stockholders. '

Real estate investments are subject to varying degrees of risk. If we acquire or develop properties
-and they do not generate sufficient operating cash flow to meet operating expenses, including debt
service, capital expenditures and tenant improvements, our income and ability to pay dividends to our
stockholders will be adversely affected. Income from properties may be adversely affected by:

* decreases in rent and/or occupancy rates due to competition, economic or other factors;

° increases in operating costs such as real estate taxes, insurance premiums, site maintenance and
utilities; N
¢ changes in interest rates and the availability of financing; and

e clianges in laws and gevemmental regulations, including those governing real estate usage,
zoning and taxes. \

Future terrorist attacks ‘in the United States and intérnational hostilities may result in declining
economic activity, which could reduce the demand for and the value of our properties.

Future terrorist attacks in the Umted States, such as the attacks that occurred in New York and
Washington, D.C. on September 11, 2001, and other acts of terrorism or war, whether in the United
States or abroad, may result in declining economic activity and reduced demand for our properties. A
decrease in demand would make it difficult for us to renew or re-lease our properties at lease rates
equal to or above historical rates. Terrorist activities also could directly impact the value of our
properties through damage, destruction or loss. We have obtained insurance coverage with respect to
some of these risks. We cannot predict whether such coverage will actually cover such risks or whether
the risks for which we obtained insurance will actually occur. To the extent that our tenants aré
impacted by future attacks, their businesses similarly could be adversely affected, including their ability
to continue to honor obligations under their existing leases.

“These types of events also may adversely affect the markets in which our securities trade. These
acts may cause further erosion of busmess and consumer confidence and spending and may result in
increased volatility in national and international financial markets and economies. Any one of these
events may cause a decline in the demand for real estate, delay the time in which our new or renovated
properties reach stable occupancy, increase our operating expenses due to increased physical security
and insurance costs for our properties and hmlt our access to cap1tal or increase our cost of raising
capital. o R :

General economic conditions may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Periods of economic slowdown or recession in the United States and in other countries, rising
interest rates or declining demand for real estate, or the public perception that any of these events may
occur, could result in a general decline in rents or an increased incidence of defaults by our tenants
under existing leases, which would: adversely affect our financial position, results of operations and cash
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flow, as well as the trading price of our securities and our ability to satisfy our debt service obligations
and to make distributions to our stockholders.

Unfavorable changes in local market and economic conditions could hurt occupancy or rental rates.

Currently, our core properties are located in metropolitan Denver, Dallas, Phoenix and
Indianapolis. Economic conditions in our local markets may significantly affect occupancy and rental
rates. Occupancy and rental rates, in turn, may significantly affect our profitability and our ability to
satisfy our financial obligations. The economic condition of our local markets may depend on one or
more industries and, therefore, an economic downturn in one of these industry sectors may adversely
affect our performance in that market. Local real estate market conditions may include a large supply
of competing space, and we compete for tenants based on rental rates, attractiveness and location of a
property, and quality of maintenance and management services.

We are subject to the credit risk of our tenants, which could result in lease payments not being made
and a significant decrease in our revenues.

Many of our tenants are small companies with nominal net worth. We cannot assure you that our
tenants will not default on their leases and fail to make rental payments to us. In particular, local
economic conditions and factors affecting the industries in which our tenants operate may affect our
tenants’ ability to make lease payments to us. Moreover, we may be unable to locate a replacement
tenant in a timely manner or on comparable or better terms if a tenant defaults on its lease. The loss
of rental revenues from a number of our tenants may adversely affect our profitability and our ability
to meet our financial obligations.

‘We may be unable to renew leases or re-lease space on a timely basis or on comparable or better
terms, which could significantly decrease our revenues,

A significant number of our leases on our 100%-owned properties, representing approximately
24% of our annualized lease revenue, expire on or before December 31, 2005. Current tenants may
elect not to renew their leases upon the expiration of their terms. Alternatively, current tenants may
attempt to terminate their leases prior to the expiration of their current terms. Many of our leases are
for relatively short terms of a few years. If non-renewals or terminations occur, we may not be able to
locate a qualified replacement tenant and, as a result, we would lose a source of revenue while
remaining responsible for the payment of our obligations. Moreover, the terms of a renewal or new
lease may be less favorable than current lease terms. This may cause affected properties to be
impaired.

Loss of a significant tenant could lead to a substantial decrease in our cash flow and an impairment
of the value of our real estate.

Although we target tenants seeking 2,000 to 4,000 square feet of office space, we may have several
significant tenants from time to time, the loss of any of which could adversely affect our cash flow and
may cause affected properties to be impaired.

Chateau Plaza in Dallas, Texas is approximately 70% (120,607 square feet) leased to a single
tenant, Dean Foods Company, under a direct lease through December 2005. However, the tenant has
the option to terminate the lease upon eight months written notice. Should the tenant elect to
terminate the lease early, it is obligated to pay a termination penalty equal to three months of the
current base rent plus any unamortized tenant improvement and leasing costs. The loss of this tenant
could adversely affect our cash flow until we are able to re-lease the vacated space. Our lease with
Dean Foods Company accounts for approximately $2,820,000 of our annual revenue, based on their
2004 base rent and excludes any adjustments for straight-line rent or expense recoveries.

13



Our uninsured and underinsured losses could result in loss of value of our properties.

There are certain types of losses, generally of a catastrophic nature, such as earthquakes and
floods, that may be uninsurable or not economically insurable, as to which our facilities are at risk in
their particular locations. Our management uses its discretion in determining amounts, coverage limits
and deductibility provisions of insurance, with a view to obtaining appropriate insurance on our
investments at a reasonable cost and on suitable terms. These decisions may result in our having
insurance coverage that, in the event of a substantial loss, would not be sufficient to repay us for the
full current market value or current replacement cost. Also, due to inflation, changes in codes and
ordinances, environmental considerations, and other factors, it may not be feasible to use insurance
proceeds to replace a building after it has been damaged or destroyed.

The success of our company depends on the continuing contributions of our key personnel.

We have a highly skilled management team and specialized workforce managing our properties.
Although, in December 2004, we entered into change of control agreements with our Chief Executive
Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Investment Officer, we do not have employment
agreements with any of our executive officers or key employees and, thus, any executive officer or key
employee may terminate his or her relationship with us at any time.

There is limited liguidity in our real estate investments, which could limit our flexibifity.

Real estate investments are relatively illiquid. Our ability to vary our portfolio in response to
changes in economic and other conditions will be limited. We may not be able to dispose of an
investment when we find disposition advantageous or necessary, and the sale price of any disposition
may not recoup or exceed the amount of our investment. In addition, federal tax laws limit our ability
to sell properties that we have owned for fewer than four years, and this may affect our ability to sell
properties without adversely affecting returns to our stockholders.

Furthermore, certain of our mortgage loans provide for penalties upon the early termination of the
respective loan. This may restrict our ability to sell or refinance those properties.

We may suffer environmental liabilities that could result in substantial costs.

Under various environmental laws, a current or previous owner or operator of real property may
be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of hazardous or toxic substances, including asbestos-
containing materials and mold, that are located on or under the property. These laws often impose
liability whether the owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of those
substances. In connection with our ownership and operation of properties, we may be liable for these
costs, which could -be substantial. Also, our ability to arrange for financing secured by that real property
might be adversely affected because of the presence of hazardous or toxic substances or the failure to
properly remediate any contamination. In addition, we may be subject to claims by third parties based
on damages and costs resulting from environmental contamination at or emanating from our
properties. In particular, two lawsuits have been filed against our AmeriVest Properties Texas Inc.
subsidiary alleging that our Mission, Texas property is contaminated with airborne contaminants. Our
insurance company is defending us in these lawsuits. These lawsuits, or similar lawsuits, if adversely
determined, could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition, and we
cannot assure you that other lawsuits will not be filed against us with respect to this building or our
other buildings.

After the acquisition of the Sheridan Center buildings, we embarked on an asbestos remediation
program in accordance with applicable federal and state requirements, using licensed contractors to
remove, wherever accessible or otherwise required, asbestos-containing materials in the buildings,
including ceiling tiles, drywall joint compound, wood and metal fire doors, wall texture, mudded pipe
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elbows and valves, thermal systems insulation, floor tile and mastic and boiler insulation. Most of the
remediation has been completed, except for one building, that is expected to be completed over the
next few years as tenants vacate spaces, allowing access to the asbestos materials.

Non-compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act could result in compliance costs and fines.

Under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, or the ADA, all public accommodations are
required to meet certain federal requirements related to physical access and use by disabled persons.
While we believe we are in compliance with the ADA requirements, a determination that we are not in
compliance with the ADA could require capital expenditures to remove access barriers and
non-compliance could result in the imposition of fines or an award of damages to private litigants. If
we were required to make modifications to comply with the ADA or other governmental rules and
regulations, our ability to make expected distributions to our stockholders could be adversely affected.

The ability of our stockholders to control our policies or effect a change in control of our company is
limited, which may not be in our stockholders’ best interests.

Charter and Bylaws Provisions. Some provisions of our charter and bylaws may delay or prevent a
change in control of our company or other transactions that could provide our stockholders with a
premium over the then-prevailing market price of our common or preferred stock or that might
otherwise be in the best interests of our stockholders. These provisions include:

» Two-thirds stockholder vote required to approve some amendments to the charter Some
amendments to our charter must be approved by the affirmative vote of stockholders holding at
least 66%:% of the outstanding shares of our common stock, voting together as a single class.
These voting requirements may make amendments to our charter that stockholders believe
desirable more difficult to effect.

s Issuance of preferred stock without stockholder approval. Our Board of Directors has the ability
to authorize the issuance of preferred stock without stockholder approval and to set or change
the designation, preferences, conversion or other rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitations as
to dividends and other distributions, qualifications, or terms or conditions of redemption of the
preferred stock. Our Board of Directors could therefore authorize series of preferred stock that
may have voting provisions that could delay or prevent a change in control or other transaction
that might involve a premium price or otherwise be in the best interests of our stockholders.

* Ownership Limitation. In order to assist us in maintaining our qualification as a REIT, our
Articles of Incorporation contain provisions generally limiting the ownership of shares of our
capital stock by any single stockholder to 9% of our outstanding shares, unless waived by our
Board of Directors. These provisions could also delay or prevent an acquisition or change in
control of our company that could benefit our stockholders.

Maryland Business Statutes. As a Maryland corporation, we are subject to the provisions of the
Maryland General Corporation Law. Maryland law imposes restrictions on some business combinations
and requires compliance with statutory procedures before some mergers and acquisitions can occur,
These provisions of Maryland law may have the effect of discouraging offers to acquire us even if the
acquisition would be advantageous to our stockholders. These provisions include:

* Unsolicited takeover provisions. Maryland law provides that the Board of Directors of a
Maryland corporation is not subject to higher duties with regard to actions taken in a takeover
context. These provisions may make it more difficult to effect an unsolicited takeover of a
Maryland corporation. Maryland law also allows publicly held corporations with at least three
independent directors to elect to be governed, without shareholder approval, by all or any part
of Maryland law provisions relating to extraordinary actions and unsolicited takeovers.
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* Business combination with interested stockholders. The Maryland Business Combination Act
provides that, unless exempted, a Maryland corporation may not engage in business
combinations, including mergers, dispositions of 10% or more of its assets, issuances of shares
and other specified transactions, with an “interested stockholder” or its affiliates, for five years
after the most recent date on which the interested stockholder became an interested stockholder
and thereafter unless specified criteria are met.

- Control share acquisition. - The Maryland Control Shares Acquisition Act provides that shares
acquired by any person over one-tenth, one-third and a majority of the voting power of a corporation
do not have voting rights, except to the extent approved by the vote of two-thirds of the shares of
common stock entitled to be cast on the matter.

Other constituencies. Maryland law expressly authorizes a Maryland corporation to include in its
charter a provision that allows the Board of Directors to consider the effect of a potential acquisition
of control on stockholders, employees, suppliers, customers, creditors and communities in which offices
or other establishments of the corporation are located. Our current charter does not include a
provision of this type. Maryland law also provides, however, that the inclusion or omission of this type
of provision in the charter of a Maryland corporation does not create an inference concerning factors
that may be considered by the Board of Directors regarding a potential acquisition of control. This law
may allow our Board of Directors to reject an acquisition proposal even though the proposal is in the
best interests of our stockholders.

Other Maryland laws. Maryland law also permits the Board of Directors, without stockholder
approval, and even if contrary to a company’s bylaws or charter, to classify the Board of Directors,
require a two-thirds vote for the removal of directors and give the Board of Directors sole power to fill
Board vacancies occurring for any reason.

There is a limited market for our common stock, which could hinder the ability of our stockholders to
sell our shares.

Historically, there has been limited trading volume for our common stock and, in the event that we
issue preferred stock, there may be a limited trading volume for our preferred stock. Our equity market
capitalization places us at the low end of market capitalization among all REITs. Because of our small
market capitalization, most of our investors are individuals. We cannot assure you that the market for
our securities will remain at current levels or expand. Due to our limited trading volume and small
market capitalization, many investors may not be interested in owning our securities because of the
inability to acquire or sell a substantial block of our stock at one time. This illiquidity could have an
adverse effect on the market price of our securities. In addition, a stockholder may not be able to
borrow funds using our securities as collateral because lenders may be unwilling to accept the pledge of
securities having such a limited market. Any substantial sale of our securities could have a material
adverse effect on the market price of our securities.

We may incur tax liabilities if we fail to qualify as a REIT.

We believe that we have been organized and operated so as to qualify as a REIT under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, since our taxable year ended December 31, 1996.
However, we cannot assure you that we will continue to be qualified as a REIT. Qualification as a
REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex Internal Revenue Code provisions for
which there are only limited judicial or administrative interpretations. The determination of various
factual matters and circumstances not entirely within our control may affect our ability to qualify as a
REIT. In addition, legislation, new regulations, administrative interpretations or court decisions may
significantly change the requirements for qualification as a REIT or the federal income tax
consequences of that qualification.
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In order to qualify as a REIT, at all times during the second half of each taxable year following
our first taxable year, no more than 50% in value of our shares may be owned, directly or indirectly
and by applying constructive ownership rules, by five or fewer individuals, including some tax-exempt
entities. Our Articles of Incorporation provide restrictions regarding the transfer of shares, including a
9% limitation on the ownership of our shares by any stockholder, that are intended to assist us in
continuing to satisfy this share ownership requirement.

If we were unable to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we would not be allowed a deduction
for distributions to stockholders in computing our taxable income and would be subject to federal
income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and possibly to the alternative minimum
tax. Unless we are entitled to relief under certain Internal Revenue Code provisions, we also would be
disqualified from treatment as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year during which REIT
qualification was lost. As a result, the funds available for distribution to our stockholders would be
reduced for each of the years involved. In addition, we may have to incur substantial indebtedness or
may have to liquidate substantial investments in order to pay the resulting federal income tax liabilities
if differences in timing exist between the receipt of income and payment of our tax obligations.
Although we currently intend to operate in a manner designed to qualify as a REIT, it is possible that
future economic, market, legal, tax or other considerations may cause us to revoke our REIT election.

We may have to borrow money to make required distributions to our stockholders,

In order to qualify as a REIT, we generally are required each year to distribute to our stockholders
at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, excluding any net capital gains. To the extent that we satisfy
the distribution requirement, but distribute less than 100% of our taxable income, we will be subject to
federal corporate income tax on our undistributed taxable income. In addition, we will be subject to a
4% nondeductible excise tax on the amount, if any, by which certain distributions paid by us with
respect to any calendar year are less than the sum of 85% of our ordinary income for that year plus
95% of our capital gain net income for that year plus any undistributed taxable income from prior
periods. On March 9, 2005, we suspended our dividend payment for the first quarter of 2005. Our
Board will review and consider the resumption of a dividend on our common stock for the second
quarter of 2005, or thereafter, based on a number of factors, including the completion of a strategic
transaction or other significant capital event, such as a refinancing or asset sales, the Company’s
financial results, capital resources and liquidity needs at that time. However, we intend to make
distributions to our stockholders to comply with the 90% distribution requirement and to avoid
corporate income tax and the nondeductible excise tax. We may have to borrow funds on a short-term
basis to meet the 90% distribution requirement and to avoid corporate income tax and the
nondeductible excise tax if differences in timing between taxable income and cash available for
distribution exist. As noted above, we may not be able to borrow these funds. Additionally, any such
borrowings may not be at favorable interest rates.

Adverse legislative or regulatory tax changes may affect the tax treatment of us or our stockholders.

At any time, the federal income tax laws governing REITS or the administrative interpretations of
those laws may be amended. Any of those new laws or interpretations thereof may take effect
retroactively and could adversely affect our company or you, as a shareholder. For example, on May 28,
2003, the President signed into law tax legislation that reduced the federal tax rate on both dividends
and long-term capital gains for individuals to 15% through 2008. Because REITs generally are not
subject to corporate income tax, this reduced tax rate generally does not apply to ordinary REIT
dividends, which continue to be taxed at the higher tax rates applicable to ordinary income. The 15%
tax rate applies to:

» long-term capital gains recognized on the disposition of REIT shares;
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* REIT capital gain distributions (except to the extent attributable to real estate depreciation, in
- which case such distributions continue to be subject to a 25% tax rate);

- * REIT dividends attributable to dividends received by a REIT from non-REIT corporations, such
as taxable REIT subsidiaries; and ‘

« REIT dividends attributable to income that was subject to corporate income tax at the REIT
‘level (e.g., to the extent that a REIT distributes less than 100% of its taxable income).

Thrs law could be causing shares in non-REIT corporations to be a relatively more attractive
investment to 1nd1v1dua1 investors ;than shares in REITS. The legislation also could be having an adverse
effect on the market price-of our securities. ‘

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

At December 31, 2004 we owned and operated 30 offrce properties which included an aggregate
of 2, 732 957 square feet. The Company s core portfolio (which excludes assets in which it owns less
than 100% and smaller office burldmgs primarily leased to the State of Texas) included 16 properties
totaling 2,450,854 square feet at December 31, 2004, located in metropolitan Denver, Dallas, Phoenix "
and Indianapolis.
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The following table provides certain information about each of our office properties at
December 31, 2004: '

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Building/ Year Rentable  Occupancy Average Rent Occupancy  Average Rent
Location Acquired Area(l) Rate(2) Per SF(3) Rate(2) Per SF(3)
Same Store—
Keystone Office Park
Indianapolis, IN . .............. 1999/2003 114,822 76.8% $17.69 86.4% $17.71
Sheridan Center
Denver, CO . ................. 2000 139,578 82.0% 15.94 82.7% 16.36
AmeriVest Plaza at Inverness
Englewood, CO. ... ............ 2001 118,720 93.9% 21.03 91.3% 23.10
Arrowhead Fountains
Peoria, AZ .. ................. 2001 96,090 100.0% 21.85 100.0% 21.85
Kellogg Building
Littleton, CO ... .............. 2001 110852 ° 93.0% 19.56 85.8% 21.04
Parkway Centre I1
Plano, TX . .................. 2002 151,968 94.8% 19.01 95.4% 20.61
Centerra
Denver, CO . ............... .. 2002 186,582 85.2% 18.09 72.9% 19.89
Chateau Plaza '
Dallas, TX .. ................. 2002 171,294 99.5% 23.42 100.0% 22.70
Southwest Gas Building
Phoenix, AZ.................. 2003 146,048 87.1% 22,64 80.4% 22.10
Financial Plaza,
Mesa, AZ .. ..., 2003 310,838 83.0% 23.51 80.5% 23.02
Scottsdale Norte
Scottsdale, AZ . ............... 2003 78,811 94.4% 22.74 80.9% 23.16
Greenhill Park
Addison, TX ................. 2003 247,264 77.0% 17.71 76.7% 18.84
Subtotal 1,872,867 87.4% $20.44 84.7% $20.93
2004 Acquisitions—
Camelback Lakes
Phoenix, AZ.................. 2004 203,179 98.9% $21.97 N/A N/A
Hackberry View of Las Colinas '
Irving, TX .. ................. 2004 114,598 100.0% 19.78 N/A N/A
Parkway Centre I1I
Plano, TX ................... 2004 152,027 93.8% 20.94 N/A N/A
Hampton Court
Dallas, TX . . . ................ 2004 108,183 100.0% 21.13 N/A N/A
Subtotal 577,987 98.0% $21.11 N/A N/A
Joint Ventures—
Panorama Falls(4)
Englewood, CO................ 2000 59,561 64.8% $19.84 78.0% $19.01
Subtotal 59,561 64.8% $19.84 78.0% $19.01
Non-Core—
Texas Bank Buildings(5)
Texas . .. .v i e 1998 N/A N/A N/A 100.0% $15.88
Texas State Buildings(6)
TEXAS « o v v e e 1997/1998 222,542 77.1% $ 9.06 76.8% $ 9.00
Subtotal 222,542 77.1% $ 9.06 81.7% $10.79
Total 2,732,957 88.3% $19.78 84.2% $19.63

|
|
|

(1) Includes office space but excludes storage, telecommunications and garage space.
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(2) Includes approximately 73,000 square feet (2.7% of total rentable area) that has been leased but is not yet occupied and
approximately 28, 000 square feet (1.0% 'of total rentable area) that is leased but has been vacated. Excludes approxnnately
9,000 square feet (0.3% of total rentable area) that expired on or about December 31, 2004.

3) Annualized cash basis revenue dmded by Jeased area.

(4) 20% of the 'property is owned by AmeriVest and 80% of the property is owned by one other investor as tenants in common.
Beginning March 31, 2004, the balance sheet and results of operations for this property are included in the Company’s
consolidated fmanaal statements.

(5) These buildings were sold March 16, 2004.
(6) On March 2, 2005, the Company completed a Deed-in-Lieu Agreement to return these properties to the lender.

The following charts illustrate the geographic distribution of our 100%-owned core properties at
-December 31, 2004.by square footage:(1)

Figure 1—Geographic Distribution by Square Footage

5%

23%

B Colorado (23%)
B Texas (39%)
£ Arizona (33%) -
M Indiana (5%)

39%

(1) Does not include Texas State Buildings or Panorama Falls.

~ The following table categorizes the area leased to tenants of our 100%- owned core properties by
industry at December 31, 2004:®

‘ Percentage

Industry . : of Area
Wholesale trade and manufacturlng ............................ 11.0%
Healthcare........«......... ... ..., e 10.1%
Consulting and bus1ness SETVICES . . o v v v e A 9.8%
Realestate ... ...t i e e e 9.7%
Financial servxces—-adwsement and brokerage . . ........... ... ... 7.3%
Financial serv1ces——m0rtgage ................ e 6.7%
, Financial services—insurance .. ... ... ... vrirernnrneoannennn, 6.7%
Legal ...... ... . i e e 6.5%
Computer systems and software ............................... 6.5%
Energy ......... .ot PP 5.8%
Travel, entertainment and foodservice ., ........ ... ... .. .., .. 3.9%
Telecommunications. ... ........... R ‘ 3.4%
Accounting .............. e e S D 2.8%
Financial’ serv1ces——bank1ng e F ' 2.6%
Other(2) ......... e e 7.2%

(1) Does not include Texas State Buildings or Panorama Falls.

(2) Includes any industry that is less than 2% of total area.

20




Consolidated Lease Expirations

The following schedule details the tenant lease expirations for our 100%-owned properties at
December 31, 2004:(1)

Number of Expiring Expiring Annual  Percentage of Total

Year Expiring Leases  Square Footage Revenue(2) Annual Revenue
2005, ... 112 542,290 $10,911,933 23.9%
2006. ... 102 319,957 6,044,542 13.2%
2007. ... 110 460,815 9,370,199 20.5%
2008. . ... 63 234,456 4,645,345 10.2%
2009. .. ... 56 328,665 7,042,497 15.4%
2010, ..o 28 262,297 4,853,171 10.6%
2011, ... 10 70,272 1,389,027 3.0%
2012, ... 4 48,185 1,050,633 2.3%
2013, ... — — —
20014, ... 2 24,062 320,480 0.7%
2015, .. e 3 7,884 109,706 0.2%
Total .................. 490 2,298,883 $45,737,533 100.0%

(1) Excludes Panorama Falls, Kellogg Executive Suites and month-to-month tenants.

(2) Represents the annual base rent and excludes any adjustments for straight-line rent or expense
recoveries.

Portfolio by Lease Size(1)

% of Occupied Number of % of Total

Lease Size Occupied Area Area Leases Leases
2,500 square feetand under . .......... 346,510 16.3% 259 54.1%
2,501 to 5,000 square feet ............. 402,911 18.9% 114 23.8%
5,001 to 10,000 square feet ............ 450,805 21.2% 65 13.6%
10,001 to 25,000 square feet ........... 525,880 24.7% 33 6.9%
25,001 to 50,000 square feet ........... 164,145 7.7% 5 1.0%
50,000 square feet and greater.......... 235,980 11.2% 3 0.6%
2,126,231 100.0% 479 100.0%

(1) Excludes Texas State Buildings and Panorama Falls.

Description of Specific Properties

At December 31, 2004, Financial Plaza was the only property whose book value was greater than
or equal to 10% of our consolidated assets. A description of this property is set forth below.

Financial Plaza

In September 2003, we acquired the Financial Plaza office building in Mesa, Arizona. The property
is comprised of a 16-story office building, a 2-story retail building and a 5-story parking garage
containing approximately 311,000 square feet on 6.07 acres of land. The parking garage contains
approximately 1,000 spaces. Financial Plaza was built in 1986.

Financial Plaza is a high-rise office asset in the Southeast Valley submarket, offering panoramic
views of the Phoenix metropolitan area from its higher floors, high quality interior finishes and
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extensive exterior landscaping. The property has access to the Phoenix highway system via the nearby
Superstition Freeway and to the many amenities of the Fiesta Mall, located across the street.
Competition for Financial Plaza comes principally from a wide range of smaller properties of lesser
quality located throughout the Southeast Valley, which compete on price, as well as two new
comparable Class A properties, which are well leased at similar rates to Financial Plaza.

Financial Plaza is leased to 45 tenants at base rental rates ranging from $20.50 to $27.35 per
square foot. The average effective annual rent per square foot at December 31, 2004 was $23.51. Lease
terms range from three to ten years.

The occupancy rate for Financial Plaza was 83%, 81%, and 82% at December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. One tenant, an ihsurance company, occupies 10% or more of the rentable area. This
tenant occupies 36,833 square feet, or approximately 12% of the building, under a direct lease through
April 2005. This tenant is also responsible for its pro-rata share of operating expenses. The tenant does
not intend to renew its lease and will be vacating the premises on or before April 30, 2005. We intend
to implement our small tenant strategy, demising full floor single tenant space into smaller spaces
which we believe will expedite the lease up of this vacant space.

The following‘ schedule details the tenant lease expirations for Financial Plaza at December 31,

2004:
Number of Expiring Expiring Annual  Percentage of Total

E Expiring Leases  Square Footage Revenue(1) Annual Revenue
2005 .......... .. 8 52,525 1,161,551 20.0%
2006 ............ 9 22,778 557,878 9.6%
2007 ... ... 16 93,752 2,112,520 36.3%
2008 ............ 1 12,907 303,315 52%
2009 ... ..., .. 8 40,188 900,617 15.5%
2000 ... 1 6,962 181,012 31%
2011 ... 1 2,240 49,280 0.8%
2012 ... ... 1 24,444 546,610 9.5%
Total............ 45 255,796 $5,812,783 100.0%

(1) Represents the annual base rent and excludes any adjustments for straight-line rent or expense
recoveries.

For 2004, the real estate taxes for Financial Plaza were approximately $769,200 as determined by
the Maricopa County Treasurer. .

Financial Plaza had a federal tax basis of $30.2 million at December 31, 2004. For federal income
tax purposes, depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over a useful life of 39 years, for
a depreciation rate of 2.56% per year. For financial reporting purposes, depreciation is determined and
computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

We hold fee simple title to this property. See “Mortgage Loans, Notes Payable and Lines of
Credit” below for information regarding the financing of this property.

Property Improvements

We currently intend to spend approximately $11.8 million for capital improvements, including
tenant improvements, at our properties during 2005. This amount is in addition to amounts that will be
expended for routine maintenance and repairs. This amount is to be funded from working capital,
additional borrowing, the conversion of outstanding options and warrants, and the sale of additional
equity securities. '
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Mortgage Loans, Notes Payable and Lines of Credit

The Company has financed its properties with mortgage loans and other debt instruments,
including the lines of credit, that were available to it. The foliowing is a summary of the Company’s
outstanding mortgage loans and notes payable (including the unsecured line of credit), classified by
interest type (fixed or variable) and in order of maturity, at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

Lender

Fixed Rate

Teachers Insurance and Annuity
Association of America . . .......

Greenwich Capital Financial Products .

Metropolitan Life Insurance Company .
Allstate Life Insurance Company . . . .
Southern Farm Bureau Life Insurance
Company . . . ......couvvunn
JP. Morgan Chase .............
JP. MorganChase . ............
Teachers Insurance and Annuity
Association of America . ........

Allstate Life Insurance Company . . . .
Allstate Life Insurance Company . . . .

Security Life of Denver Insurance
Company .. .......c.oovvin.,
Security Life of Denver Insurance
Company..................
Transatlantic Capital Company,
LIC(3) . ..o e

Variable Rate

KeyBank National Association—
$42 million Senior Secured Line of
Credit(4) . ....... ... .. ...,

KeyBank National Association—
$40 million Unsecured Line of
Credit(4) . .......... ... ...

Other Notes Payable
Lease Capital Corporation ........

Liabilities—held for sale
Jefferson Pilot . .. .............

2004 2003
Mortgaged Property at Maturity  Principal Interest Principal Interest
December 31, 2004 Date Balance Rate(1) Balance Rate(1)
AmeriVest Plaza at Inverness  1/10/2006 $ 14,412,347  7.90% $ 14,572,888  7.90%
Hampton Court 11/1/2007 7,900,000 5.48% — —
Parkway Centre II 10/1/2008 38,115,018 5.13% 38,876,849 5.13%
Centerra
Southwest Gas Building
Parkway Centre III 9/10/2009 15,154,645 4.47% —_ —
Financial Plaza 10/5/2010 24,173,324  525% 24,669,760  5.25%
Scottsdale Norte 4/1/2011 6,568,596 790% 6,625,460  7.90%
Hackberry View—1% 9/1/2012  11,424345  6.57% — —
Hackberry View—2%4(2) 9/1/2012 967,654  8.00% — —
Sheridan Center 112013 28,852,678  7.40% 29,309,686 7.40%
Arrowhead Fountains
Kellogg Building
Camelback—1st 9/5/2014 15,928,449  5.82% — —
Camelback—2 9/5/2014 4977640 5.82% — —
Keystone Office Park—1st 5112022 4,236,333 8.00% 4,334,828 8.00%
Keystone Office Park—2nd 5/1/2022 474284  8.63% 485,638 8.63%
Texas State Buildings 8/1/2028 5,579,891  7.66% 5,660,436  7.66%
Subtotal $178,765,204  6.14% $124,535,545  6.39%
Chateau Plaza 11/12/2005 $ 32,900,000 4.96% $ 18,470,020 3.90%
Greenhill Park
Unsecured 11/12/2007 24,857,063 5.63% 15,149,725 5.17%
Subtotal $ 57,757,063 5.25% $ 33,619,745 4.47%
Phone system 10/31/2007 $ 64,124 11.11% § 82,371 11.11%
Subtotal $ 64,124 11.11% § 82,371 11.11%
Texas Bank Buildings 5/1/2013 — —_ 1,296,049  9.00%
Total $236,586,391  5.92% $159,533,710  6.01%

(1) Interest only, does not include amortization of deferred financing costs or any fees.

(2) The amount recorded reflects a net present value calculation based on a fair market value rate of 8%. The actual loan
balance assumed was $697,847 at an interest rate of 15%.

(3) On March 2, 2005, the Company completed a Deed-in-Lien Agreement to return these properties to. the lender.

(4) In October 2004, KeyBank assumed the secured line of credit (Secured Facility) and unsecured line of credit (Unsecured
Facility) from Fleet National Bank (Fleet). All references to the Secured Facility or Unsecured Facility prior to this date
pertain to the previous agreement with Fleet. See “Significant Transactions—2005 Transactions” for information on the
amendments to the Secured and Unsecured Facilities.
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Insurance

We believe that each of our properties is adequately covered by insurance under a blanket policy.

Policies and Objectives With Respect to Certain Activities

The following is a discussion of our policies with respect to investment, financing and other
activities. The policies with respect to these activities have been determined by our Board of Directors
and, although our Board currently does not contemplate any changes to these policies, our Board may
change these policies without a vote or other approval of stockholders.

Acquisition, Development and Investment Policies

Our business and growth strategies are designed to maximize total return to stockholders over the
medium- and long-term with a niche property type and geographic focus. Our current policies
contemplate the possibility of: :

* direct ownership of real estate properties, including ownership through wholly-owned
subsidiaries, focusing on office properties with average tenant sizes of between 2,000 and 4,000
square feet;

» indirect participation in those types of properties through investments in corporations, business
trusts, general partnerships, limited partnerships, joint ventures and other legal entities; and

* development and acquisition of unimproved property or the acquisition and conversion of
existing structures.

At the present time, all but one of our existing investments in real estate properties are held
through direct ownership. Generally, we intend to hold our properties for the long term. However, we
may sell properties when we believe the economic benefits, including the income tax consequences,
warrant such action. Our long-term view is to focus on multi-tenant office buildings in select cities and
dispose of non-core assets and property types when economically and operationally feasible.

Although we have no formal policy as to the allocation of assets among our investments, we
generally intend to limit investment in a single property to a maximum of 25% of our total assets. We
expect to fund future development and acquisitions, if any, utilizing funds from additional indebtedness,
future offerings of our securities, sale or exchange of existing properties, and retained cash flow. In
order to maintain our qualification as a REIT, we must make annual distributions to our stockholders
of at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, which does not include net capital gains. This
requirement may impair our ability to use retained cash flow for future acquisitions.

Financing Policies

Subject to the results of our strategic alternatives review and the availabilty of capital, we may seek
to make additional investments in properties and may incur indebtedness to make those investments or
to meet the distribution requirements imposed by the REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended, to the extent that cash flow from our operations, investments and working capital
is insufficient. Additional indebtedness incurred by us may be secured by part or all of our real estate
properties. Our Board of Directors has placed no limitations on the number or amount of secured
indebtedness or mortgages that may be placed on any one of our properties, however, our Secured -
Facility limits our total liabilities to 70% of gross assets, as calculated in accordance with the loan
agreement.

Secured indebtedness incurred by us may be in the form of purchase money obligations to the
sellers of properties, or publicly or privately placed debt instruments or financing from banks,
institutional investors or other lenders. This indebtedness may be recourse to all or any part of our

24




assets, or may be limited to the particular property to which the indebtedness relates. The proceeds
from any borrowings by us may be used for, among other things, refinancing existing indebtedness,
financing development and acquisition of properties, financing renovation or redevelopment of
properties, the payment of dividends, and working capital. As noted above, the amendments to our
lines of credit described above preclude any further indebtedness without the consent of our lender for
any purpose, including the payment of dividends.

If our Board of Directors decides to raise additional equity capital, our Board has the authority,
generally without stockholder approval and provided we have sufficient authorized shares, to issue
additional common stock or preferred stock in any manner, and on such terms and for such
consideration, as our Board deems appropriate, including in exchange for property. Existing
stockholders have no preemptive right to purchase shares issued in any offering, and any such offering
might cause a dilution of a stockholder’s investment in us.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Except as described below, we are not presently subject to material litigation, nor to our
knowledge is any material litigation threatened against us.

On June 14, 2001, a lawsuit was filed in the District Court, Hidalgo County, Texas against
Innerarity Austin, Inc., a Nevada corporation, and our AmeriVest Properties Texas, Inc. subsidiary, by
Laura Smith alleging that the defendants were negligent and breached various duties in allowing our
Mission, Texas building to be contaminated with airborne contaminants while leasing the premises to
the plaintiff’s employer, the Texas Department of Human Services. Innerarity Austin, Inc. was the
previous owner of the property. The plaintiff alleges that due to the acts and omissions of the
defendants, she has suffered serious and some permanent injuries and severe physical and mental pain.
The plaintiff seeks monetary and other relief, including exemplary damages, in excess of $50,000, and
pre-judgment and post-judgment interest as provided by law, costs of the lawsuit and such other relief
to which the plaintiff may be justly entitled. We have been advised that this lawsuit has now been
settled with our insurance carrier; however, the terms of that settlement are not known as of the date
of this report.

On February 11, 2002, a lawsuit was filed in the District Court, Hidalgo County, Texas against our
AmeriVest Properties Texas, Inc. subsidiary and Woodhaven Management Corporation, our external
property manager, by Irma and Yreneo Carranza alleging that the defendants were negligent in
maintaining our Mission, Texas building while leasing the premises to the plaintiff’s employer, the Texas
Department of Human Services. The plaintiff alleges that due to the acts and omissions of the
defendants, she has suffered serious and some permanent injuries and severe physical and mental pain,
including loss of consortium. The plaintiff seeks monetary and other relief, including exemplary
damages, and pre-judgment and post-judgment interest as provided by law, costs of the lawsuit and
such other relief to which the plaintiff may be justly entitled.

We have asserted a general denial of the material allegations in all lawsnits and our insurance
companies are defending us in these lawsuits and are responsible for all costs. We believe that these
lawsuits will not be adversely determined and will not have any material adverse effect on our business
and financial condition.

We are party to various other claims and routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business. We do not believe that the results of any such claims and litigation, individually or in the
aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, or results of
operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
PURCHASE OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock has traded on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol “AMV” since
January 27, 2000.

The table below presents the range of high and low sale prices for our common stock during each
of the quarters indicated, as reported by the American Stock Exchange, and the cash dividends per
share paid with for the periods indicated:

Dividend
High Low Per Share
2003:
First QUarter. . . ...t i i ettt $6.55 $5.66  $0.130
Second QUArter. . . ... ot $6.65 $5.85 $0.130
Third Quarter . ... ..., e . $6.75 $6.11  $0.130
Fourth Quarter . .......ciii it iee e $7.21 $6.50  $0.130
2004: ‘ -
First Quarter......... e e e e e e $7.64 $6.40 $0.130
Second Quarter....... P $6.93 $548 $0.130
Third Quarter . . .. ...t e $6.89 $5.84 $0.130
Fourth Quarter ...........0iiiin s $7.30 $6.20  $0.130

On March 1, 2003, the closing sale price for our common stock was $6.36 per share, as reported by
the American Stock Exchange. On March 1, 2005, there were approximately 8,400 stockholders of
AmeriVest, consisting of approximately 300 holders of record. The information concerning beneficial
owners is based on information provided by brokers and depositories who hold shares in their names
on behalf of others.

Due to the suspension of the common dividend (see “Dividend Policy” below), the closing price
for our common stock on March 10, 2005 was $5.38. Based on the common shares outstanding at
December 31, 2004, our equity market capitalization was $129.0 million at March 10, 2005.

Dividend Policy

For tax purposes, the above distributions represent an approximate 88% and 44% return of capital
in 2004 and 2003, respectively. In order to maintain our qualification as a REIT, we must make annual
distributions to our shareholders of at least 90% of our taxable income, excluding capital gains. Since
our initial public offering in November 1996, until the first quarter of 2005, we paid a dividend each
quarter.

On March 9, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors suspended the payment of the common
dividend for the first quarter of 2005. The Board determined that suspension of the dividend will
maximize the Company’s ability to complete a strategic transaction in a timely manner. The Board
intends to review and consider the resumption of a dividend for the second quarter of 2005, or
thereafter, based on a number of factors, including the completion of a strategic transaction or other
significant capital event, such as refinancing or asset sales, the Company’s financial results, capital
resources and liquidity needs at that time and ongoing negotiations with the Company’s bank group.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During 2004, we issued shares of common stock that were not registered under the Securities Act
of 1933 in the following transactions:

We issued a total of 92,753 shares of common stock upon exercise of stock. The issuance of these
shares of common stock was made pursuant to an exemption from registration in accordance with
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act based on a representation to us from the entity receiving the shares
that such entity was a sophisticated investor who was knowledgeable about our operations and financial
condition and was able to evaluate the risks and merits of receipt of the shares.

We issued 101,062 shares of common stock upon exercise of previously issued warrants. The
issuance of these shares of common stock was made pursuant to an exemption from registration in
accordance with Section 4(2) of the Securities Act based on a representation to us from the entity
receiving the shares that such entity was a sophisticated investor who was knowledgeable about our
operations and financial condition and was able to evaluate the risks and merits of receipt of the
shares.

Purchase of Equity Securities

Certain information regarding purchases made by or on behalf of the Company or any affiliate
purchases (as defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) of
our common stock during the three months ended December 31, 2004, is provided below:

Total Number of Maximum Number
Number of Average Shares Purchased of Shares That May
Shares Price Paid as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
Period Purchased per Share  Announced Plans(1) Under the Plan(2)

October 2004 . ..., 6,711 $6.71 6,711 N/A

(1) On August 11, 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the adoption of the Dividend
Reinvestment Plan (the “Plan”). Under the Plan, the Company is authorized to instruct the plan
administrator to repurchase shares of its common stock from time to time, either directly or
through agents, in the open market at prices and on terms satisfactory to the Company in order to
offset some of all such shares issued pursuant to the Plan. The Company announced the Plan in
September 2000. The Plan has no expiration date.

(2) One million shares of Company common stock are registered for sale by the Company under the
Plan. The Plan has no limits as to the number of shares or dollar value that may be repurchased
by the Company to satisfy the shares needed under the Plan.

27




ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table provides selected financial data relating to our historical financial condition
and results of operations as of and for each of the years ending December 31, 2000 to 2004. The data
is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read in conjunction with, “Item 7. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the financial statements
and related notes that have been included or incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K.

Operations Summary:
Rental revenue . ......,......
Property operating expense—

Operating expenses.. . . . ... ...

Real estate taxes . ..........
General and administrative fees . . .
Interest expense . ............
Depreciation and amortization . ..
Impairment of investment in real

eState . .. ..
Loss from continuing operations . .
Total other income/(loss) .......
Gainonsale................
Income/(loss) before discontinued

operations . .. ..........:..

Discontinued operations . . . .....

Net income/(loss) . ........... '

Per Share Data:
Income/(loss) per common share—
basic............ ... .. ...
Income/(loss) per common share—
diluted ..................
Common share cash dividends
paid . ...... .. ... . ... .. v
Weighted average shares
outstanding—basic . .........
Weighted average shares
outstanding—diluted . . . . ... ..

Financial Position: ‘

Net investment in real estate . . . . .

Totalassets . . . ........ovv...

Secured mortgage loans and notes
payable, excluding discontinued
operations . .. .............

Unsecured line of credit . . ... ...

Total liabilities . .............

Other Data:

Net cash flows provided by (used in):
Operating activities ...........
Investing activities . . ..........
Financing activities ...........

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
$ 45075225 $ 28,793,825 §$ 15,293,973 § 9,864,835 $ 6,204,054
13,476,493 7,822,693 3,740,903 2,787,690 1,931,553
5,829,535 3,639,508 1,548,763 1,055,268 582,552
4,370,403 3,526,097 1,755,104 677,845 772,461
12,443,610 7,747,017 4,016,457 3,047,398 2,027,137
14,387,431 6,892,207 3,233,259 2,117,827 1,083,551
1,160,000 1,465,932 © 275,000 326,113 —
(6,915,873)  (2,301,279) (642,893) (147,306) (193,200)
325,186 18,517 98,224 117,709 3,066
- — — 1,156,445 2,556,839
(6,590,687)  (2,282,762) (544,669) 1,126,848 2,366,705
687,735 - 302,342 387,395 361,645 310,019
(5,902,952)  (1,980,420) (157,274) 1,488,493 2,676,724
$ (0.26) $ (013) $ 0.02) $ 032 $ 1.07
$ 0.26) $ (0.13) $ 0.02) $ 031 $ 1.07
$ 0528 052 $ 052 §$ 052 $ 0.50
22,348,811 14,686,369 9,341,608 4,680,719 2,492,584
22,348,811 14,686,369 9,341,608 4,801,307 2,495,919
$330,813,749  $223,804,406 $144,987,138 § 80,846,900 $ 38,993,259
347,953,689 240,500,462 157,183,587 88,021,284 42,363,797
211,729,328 143,087,936 104,716,860 56,953,687 26,591,911
24,857,063 15,149,725 — — —
252,903,717 170,396,055 113,287,787 63,024,299 31,005,294
93,469,915 70,104,407  43,895800 24,996,985 11,358,503

0§ 11,869,797 $ 10,650,918 $ 5,427,045 $ 3,263,765 $ 2,517,784

(94,453,601)
82,965,879

(
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56,062,593)
44,570,694

(50,312,422)
46,084,588

(24,671,608)
21,480,222

(15,005,789)
13,076,645




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations of
AmeriVest as of and for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes to consolidated financial statements
contained in the Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Executive Summary

We are a REIT which own$ and operates commercial office buildings in select markets catering to
small and medium size businesses. At December 31, 2004, we owned 30 properties totaling 2,732,957
square feet. The Company’s core portfolio (which excludes assets it owns less than 100% and smaller
office buildings primarily leased to the State of Texas) included 16 properties totaling 2,450,854 square
feet, at December 31, 2004, located in metropolitan Denver, Dallas, Phoenix and Indianapolis. We
generate revenue primarily through the rental of office space at our properties. Key factors that affect
our business and financial results are as the follows:

* the current economic environment in metropolitan Denver, Dallas, Phoenix and Indianapolis;
* the occupancy rates at our properties;

* the rental rates on our propetties;

* tenant improvement and leasing costs incurred to obtain or retain tenants; and

* the extent of early lease termination and any lease termination fees.

In November 2004, the Company announced that it had retained Bear, Stearns & Co., Inc. to
assist our Board of Directors in undertaking a review of a broad range of strategic alternatives for the
Company. These alternatives include identifying an institutional capital partner to assist in the
Company’s long-term growth plans, a sale or recapitalization of all or a portion of the Company’s
properties, the potential sale or merger of the Company, and other possible transactions designed to
enhance shareholder value. With the assistance of Bear Stearns, the Board is evaluating the Company’s
strategic alternatives; however, such an evaluation may not result in a transaction of any kind. Due to
the uncertainty surrounding the strategic direction of the Company, actual outcomes and results may
differ materially from what is expressed, forecasted, or implied.
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Results of Operations
Same Store Property Results

The Company defines the Same Store population as properties that were fully operating during
each respective comparison period. We believe the same store comparison is helpful as it demonstrates
the population’s performance on a year-over-year basis. We have seven properties in our same store
population for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the same period in 2003.
The financial results from these properties, as well as the occupancy and average rent per square foot
are as follows:

Twelve months ended December 31,
2004 2003 Change % Change

Real Estate Operating Revenue ' '
Rental revenue ............ e . $19,938,153 $19,834,615 § 103,538 0.5%

Real Estate Operating Expenses
Property operating expenses—

Operating eXpenses. . . . . ............. 5334853 5007279 (327,574 (6.5)%

Realestate taxes . .................. 2,523,671 2,641,773 118,102 :4._5%

Total property operating expenses . ...... 7,858,524 7,649,052 (209,472) (27)%
Net Operating Income . . .. ........covuvnunn. $12,079,629 $12,185,563 $(105,934) (0.9)%
Average rent per sq. foot at December 31, ....... $ 1991 § 2084 $ (093) (45%
Occupancy at December 31, ........ e 92.2% 88.9% 3.3%

During 2004, same store portfolio occupancy increased from 88.9% to 92.2%; however, the average
rent on the new leases was, in many cases, less than the average rent on existing leases, resultmg in a
decline in average rent per square foot of 4.5%.
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Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2004 to the Year Ended December 31, 2003

We increased our revenues and expenses significantly by adding approximately 578,000 square feet,
or 21%, to our portfolio through the acquisition of four properties during 2004, combined with the
inclusion of the operations of our 2003 acquisitions for a full year. For a discussion regarding the
acquired properties, see “Item 1, 2004 and 2003 Transactions.” The following represent our operating
results for 2004 and 2003:

2004 2003 Change

REAL ESTATE OPERATING REVENUE

Rentalrevenue ....... ... ... i, $45,075,225  $28,793,825 $16,281,400
REAL ESTATE OPERATING EXPENSES

Property operating expenses—

Operating eXpenses . ... ........ccceeeeeeennn... 13,476,493 7,822,693 5,653,800
Realestatetaxes ................ ... ... 5,829,535 3,639,508 2,190,027
General and administrative expenses ................ 4,370,403 3,526,097 844,306
Interest expense .......... ..., 12,443,610 7,747,017 4,696,593
Depreciation and amortization expense. . ... .......... 14,387,431 6,892,207 7,495,224
Impairment of investment in real estate . ............. 1,160,000 1,465,932 (305,932)
Other EXPENSES . o v\ vt ve e ie et e eiae s 323,626 1,650 321,976
Total operating €Xpense . .. ........oeovuvevienasan 51,991,098 31,095,104 20,895,994
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS ........... (6,915,873)  (2,301,279)  (4,614,594)
OTHER INCOME/(LOSS) ‘
Interest IMCOME . . o . v v v ittt e et e e it e 87,016 73,470 13,546
Equity in loss of affiliate ................ ... .. .... (18,076) (54,953) 36,877
Minority interest . ............. .. i e 256,246 —_ 256,246
Total otherincome . . ... .o vt i i it en e 325,186 18,517 306,669
LOSS BEFORE DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS . ... ... (6,590,687) (2,282,762)  (4,307,925)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS ................... 687,735 302,342 385,393
NET LOSS . i i e e e e $(5,902,952) $(1,980,420) (3,922,532)

Rental revenue—Rental revenue increased by approximately $16.3 million, or 57%, in 2004 as
compared to 2003. Approximately $6.8 million of the increase is due to the inclusion of the operating
results from the 2004 acquisitions (Camelback Lakes, Hackberry View, Parkway Centre III and
Hampton Court) and approximately $8.8 million is due to the inclusion of the 2003 acquisitions
(Southwest Gas Building, Greenhill Park, Scottsdale Norte and Financial Plaza) for a full year in 2004
versus a partial year in 2003. Approximately $536,000 of the remaining increase is due to the
consolidation of Panorama Falls due to the adoption of FIN 46R whereby its operations are included
with those of the Company beginning March 31, 2004. We anticipate that rental revenues will continue
to increase in 2005 due to the 2004 acquisitions and improved occupancy and more favorable rental
rates; however, a portion of any rental revenue increase will be offset by rental rate roll down in
expiring leases.

The total portfolio occupancy was 88.3% at December 31, 2004 as compared to 84.2% at
December 31, 2003. This increase is primarily due to the 2004 acquisitions, which were 98% occupied
at December 31, 2004, and accounted for 2.6% of the increase in occupancy.

Property operating expenses—Property operating expenses (operating expenses, real estate taxes, and
ground lease expense) increased by approximately $7.8 million, or 68%, in 2004 as compared to 2003.
Approximately $2.5 million of the increase is due to the inclusion of the 2004 acquisitions and
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approximately $4.3 ‘million is due to the 2003 acquisitions operating for a full year in 2004 versus a
partial year in 2003. In addition, of the remaining increase, $470,000 of the increase is due to the
ground lease expense on Greenhill Park and approximately $320,000 is due to the consolidation of
Panorama Falls in 2004. Real estate taxes, which are the largest component of property operating
expenses, increased from approximately $3.6 million in 2003 to approximately $5.8 million in 2004, both
of which represent approximately 13% of revenue. The 2004 and 2003 acquisitions represent ’
approximately $2.1 million of the increase. Based on our experience, upon acquisition, a property is
often reassessed by the local municipalities at the purchase price and real estate taxes increase
accordingly. While the Company utilizes outside property tax consulting firms to protest the valuations
of any properties that are deemed to be overvalued, it records the actual expense in the year incurred
with any amounts refunded to the Company through this process recorded when realized.

During the latter half of 2003 and first quarter of 2004, the Company hired regional personnel in
the Denver, Dallas and Phoenix markets. The Company believes it is important to its strategy to
self-manage its properties with experienced management in the local markets. The Company focuses on
the control of operating expenses; however, we anticipate that operating expenses will continue to
increase in 2005. This increase will be partially offset by the decrease in ground lease expense, due to
the acquisition of the Greenhill Park land subject to the ground lease in October 2004.

General and administrative expenses—General and administrative expenses increased approximately
$844,000, or 24%, in 2004 as compared to 2003. Approximately $500,000 of the increase is related to
audit, legal and consulting fees primarily incurred by the Company’s efforts to comply with the
‘Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The remainder of the increase is principally due to the addition of
corporate personnel hired during the latter half of 2003 and in 2004 to support the continued growth of
the Company. These increases are partially offset by approximately $170,000 in severance incurred
during 2003, which did not occur in 2004. The Company anticipates a slight decrease in general and
administrative expenses during 2005 primarily due to lower fees related to Sarbanes-Oxley compliance.

Interest expense—Interest expense increased approximately $4.7 million, or 61%, in 2004 as
compared to 2003. The increase is primarily due to the borrowings the Company incurred for
acquisitions during 2004 and late-2003 and the $6.5 million increase in capital and tenant improvements
during 2004 as compared to 2003 for which the Company borrowed on the Unsecured Facility. The
increase in interest expense is also attributable to higher interest rates on the Company’s lines of credit
during 2004. During 2004, the Company increased the capacity of the Unsecured Facility from
$30.0 million to $40.0 million and replaced the facility fee with a one-time commitment fee that is
being amortized into interest expense over the life of the loan agreement.

Depreciation and amortization—Depreciation and amortization increased approximately
$7.5 million, or 109%, in 2004 as compared to 2003. The increase in depreciation was a result of our
acquisitions during 2004 and 2003. The Company also anticipates an increase of approximately
$3.5 million in depreciation and amortization for 2005 due to the recent acquisitions. Furthermore, the
Company’s adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business
Combinations”, which, among other 'things, requires an allocation of the purchase price of a property
to an intangible asset representing the value associated with the in-place leases, has had and will
continue to have a significant impact on the Company’s depreciation and amortization expense as
additional properties are acquired. The intangible assets are amortized over the remaining life of the
in-place leases which generally range from 24 to 55 months.

Impairment of investment in real estate—The $1.2 million impairment recorded during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2004 relates to certain of the Texas State Buildings located in Lubbock,
El Paso, Temple, Bellville, Columbus, Hempstead, Mission, Arlington, Marshall, and Amarillo, Texas
(the Company previously recognized impairments on the remaining two buildings in Clint and Paris,
Texas—see below). Impairment charges recorded on the Texas State Building portfolio reduced the
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total net book value to the properties’ total estimated fair value of $5.2 million, excluding certain
deposits maintained by the lender. The Company calculated the estimated fair value using probability-
weighted forecasted cash flows. Subsequent to year-end, the Company entered into negotiations with
the lender to return the properties in lieu of the debt balance. This transaction was completed in
March 2005.

Other expense—The $322,000 increase in other expense is due to costs, such as non-refundable
earnest money deposits and legal costs, which were previously capitalized in connection with anticipated
acquisitions. These pursuits were terminated during the fourth quarter of 2004 and all capitalized costs
associated with these acquisitions were expensed.

Discontinued operations—In March 2004, the Company sold its Texas Bank Buildings for
$4.1 million and recognized a net gain of $574,000. In accordance with SEAS No. 144, the Company
has classified the operations of these properties, as well as the gain on disposition, as discontinued
operations.

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2003 to the Year Ended December 31, 2002

We increased our revenues and expenses significantly by adding approximately 783,000 square feet
to our portfolio through the acquisition of four properties during 2003, combined with the inclusion of
the operations of our 2002 acquisitions for a full year.

2003 2002 Change

REAL ESTATE OPERATING REVENUE

Rentalrevenue ............... ... i nnn. $28,793,825 $15,293,973  $13,499,852
REAL ESTATE OPERATING EXPENSES
Property operating expenses—

Operating expenses . . .........couveeinnnnunins 7,822,693 3,740,903 4,081,790
Realestatetaxes ... .......... ... .. 3,639,508 1,548,763 2,090,745
General and administrative expenses . ............... 3,526,097 1,746,184 1,779,913
Advisory and capital projects fees. . ................. — 1,367,380  (1,367,380)
Interest expense . ........... ..., 7,747,017 4,016,457 3,730,560
Depreciation and amortization expense. . . ............ 6,892,207 3,233,259 3,658,948
Impairment of investment in real estate .............. 1,465,932 275,000 1,190,932
Other eXPenses . .« oo vvv e s et enie e e e 1,650 8,920 (7,270)
Total operating expense ........................ 31,095,104 15,936,866 15,158,238
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS ........... (2,301,279) (642,893) (1,658,386)
OTHER INCOME/(LOSS)
Interestincome ... ... ... 73,470 164,519 (91,049)
Equity in loss of affiliate ......................... (54,953) (66,295) 11,342
Total otherincome . . ......... ... . . 18,517 98,224 (79,707)
LOSS BEFORE DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS . ...... (2,282,762) (544,669)  (1,738,093)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS ................... 302,342 387,395 (85,053)
NET LOSS ... i i i it e et e e aae $(1,980,420) $ (157,274) (1,823,146)

Rental revenue—Rental revenue increased by approximately $13.5 million, or 88%, in 2003 as
compared to 2002. Approximately $5.6 million of the increase is due to the inclusion of the operating
results from the 2003 acquisitions (Southwest Gas, Financial Plaza, Scottsdale Norte and Greenhill
Park) and approximately $8.5 million is due to the inclusion of the operating results from the 2002
acquisitions (Parkway Centre II, Centerra and Chateau Plaza) for a full year in 2003 versus a partial
year in 2002. Offsetting these increases is a decrease of approximately $480,000 due to a 1% decline in
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our same store properties occupancy rate combined with a weak rental market, which negatively
impacted rental revenue. A majority of the decline in the existing portfolio was experienced in the
Denver market where the soft economy forced some tenants to downsize or go out of business. The
remaining decrease of approximately $218,000 was due to the loss of the tenant, an agency of the State
of Texas, at our Paris, Texas property in December 2002.

The total portfolio occupancy rate was 84.2% at December 31, 2003, a decline from 88.0% at
December 31, 2002. This decrease is primarily attributable to the 2003 acquisitions, which were
approximately 79% occupied at year: end, however, the above-mentioned 1% decline in our existing
portfolio occupancy rate also contributed to the overall decline in occupancy.

Property operating expenses—Property operating expenses increased by approximately $6.2 million,
or 117%, in 2003 as compared 2002. Approximately $2.2 million of the increase is due to the inclusion
of the 2003 acquisitions and approximately $3.6 million is due to the inclusion of the 2002 acquisitions
for a full year in 2003. The remainder of the increase was experienced in our same store properties and
non-core properties. The main components of the additional expense consisted of increases in real
estate taxes, utilities and regional property management personnel. Real estate taxes increased from
approximately $1.6 million, or 10% of revenue, in 2002 to approximately $3.7 million, or 12% of
revenue, in 2003. ‘

General and administrative expernises—General and administrative expenses increased by
approximately $1.8 million, or 102%, in 2003 as compared to 2002. To support the continued growth of
the Company, we continued to incur additional general and administrative expenses, including salary,
consulting, legal and accounting costs. Included in 2003 were charges of approximately $258,000 in
compensation expense for bonuses to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Chief
Investment Officer as provided by the Company’s 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan, approximately
$170,000 in severance expense to our former Chief Financial Officer and apprommately $125,000 in
recruiting fees related to corporate and regional hires.

Advisory and capital projects fee—The advisory and capital projects fees expense recognized in 2002
represents the fees earned by SRA, in accordance with the Advisory Agreement, for 2002 property
acquisitions and as provided for in the Termination of Advisory Agreement we executed with SRA.
‘Effective January 1, 2002, the Advisory Agreement was amended whereby certain SRA employees
became our employees and as a result, the advisory and capital project fees were expensed. Prior to
January 1, 2002, these fees were capitalized. Additionally, due to the termination of the Advisory
Agreement effective November 1, 2002 whereby all remaining SRA employees became our employees,
these fees have been eliminated. Beginning November 1, 2002, the salaries of these additional
employees are included in general and administrative expenses.

Interest expense—Interest expense increased by approximately $3.7 million, or 93%, in 2003 as
compared to 2002. Of this increase, approximately $1.1 million relates to mortgage loans on the 2003
acquisitions and approximately $2.0 million relates to mortgage loans on the 2002 acquisitions held for
an entire year in 2003. In addition, approximately $610,000 of the increase is due to the refinancing of
the Sheridan Center, Arrowhead Fountains and Kellogg Building variable rate loans with a weighted
average rate of 4.5% with a fixed rate portfolio loan with a fixed rate of 7.4%. Although the
refinancings have negatively impacted our results, we believe it was the proper course of action to have
our long-term assets financed with long-term, fixed rate debt, which provides more stability and
certainty. The increase in interest expense is also attributable to the interest and fees related to the
short-term loan, which was used in the acquisition of the Southwest Gas Building and later refinanced
with the Unsecured Fleet Facility.

Depreciation and amortization—The increase in depreciation and amortization expense is due to
the increase in depreciable assets resulting from the above-mentioned acquisitions.
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Impairment of investment in real estate—During 2003, the Company recorded a $335,000
impairment charge for a 12,979 square foot building in Clint, Texas and a $1.1 million impairment
charge for a 33,312 square foot building in Paris, Texas. Both properties had been previously leased to
agencies of the State of Texas. The Clint building had been vacant since November 2001 and the Paris
building had been vacant since December 2002. The Company recorded a $275,000 impairment charge
related to the Clint property in 2002. The Company arrived at the estimated fair values using a
combination of the property tax assessment values, values estimated by the our property tax consulting
firms and local real estate brokers.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our net cash provided by operating activities is primarily dependent upon the occupancy level of
our properties, the rental rates on our leases, the collectibility of rent from our tenants, and the level
of operating and other expenses. Our net cash provided by operating activities has been a significant
source of liquidity to help fund debt service, capital improvements, tenant improvements and leasing
costs for operating properties as well as distributions to our shareholders. Until our evaluation of
strategic alternatives is competed, we do not plan to make any new acquisitions.

On March 15, 2005, the Company amended its Secured Facility and Unsecured Facility with
KeyBank due to the Company not being in compliance with its leverage, interest coverage and fixed
charge coverage covenants required by the Secured Facility. The amendment to the Secured Facility
involved: (i) a waiver for the events of non-compliance, noted above, as of December 31, 2004,

(ii) changes to the debt covenant calculations to set them at the same levels as those previously
established for the Unsecured Facility, (iii) mandatory repayments of at least $2.5 million by July 1,
2005 and at least $10.0 million by September 1, 2005, (iv) removal of the revolving feature of the
Secured Facility, and (v) the elimination of the obligation of the lender to make any further loans
under the Secured Facility. The amendment to the Unsecured Facility involved: (i) a waiver for the
events of non-compliance as of December 31, 2004 due to cross default provisions with the Secured
Facility (ii) moving up the maturity date from November 12, 2007 to April 1, 2006, (iii) mandatory
repayments of at least $5.0 million by September 2005 and at least $10.0 million by January 2006,
(iv) removal of the revolving feature of the Unsecured Facility, (v) a requirement that any further
borrowings, including borrowings to pay dividends, be subject to the approval of the lender in its sole
and absolute discretion, (vi) a limitation on the incurrence of any other indebtedness by the Company
without the prior written consent of the lender and (vii) a requirement that all net proceeds from a
property sale, refinancing or other capital transaction be used to pay down any amounts outstanding.

On March 9, 2005, our Board suspended the payment of the common dividend for the first quarter
of 2005. The Board determined that suspension of the dividend will maximize the Company’s ability to
complete a strategic transaction in a timely manner. The Board intends to review and consider the
resumption of a dividend for the second quarter of 2005, or thereafter, based on a number of factors,
including the completion of a strategic transaction or other significant capital event, such as refinancing
or asset sales, the Company’s financial results, capital resources and liquidity needs at that time.

A material adverse change in our net cash provided by operating activities may affect our ability to
fund the items listed above and may affect the financial performance covenants under our lines of
credit. If we fail to meet our financial performance covenants and to reach a satisfactory resolution
with our lenders, our lines of credit could become unavailable to us or the interest charged on the line
of credit could increase. Any of these circumstances could adversely affect our ability to fund working
capital and unanticipated cash needs and development costs.
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Operating Activities i

Net cash flows provided by operations increased $1.2 million, or 11%, in 2004 as compared to 2003
and $5.2 million, or 96%, in 2003 as compared to 2002. These increases are primarily due to the
inclusion of the operations from property acquisitions. See “Results of Operations” for a more
complete discussion of factors impacting our operating performance.

Invésting Activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities increased $38.4 million, or 69%, in 2004 as compared to
2003 and $5.8 million, or 11%, in 2003 as compared to 2002. These increases are primarily due to the
properties that were acquired during the period and the related capital improvement, tenant
improvement and leasing commission costs incurred by the Company relating to the 2003 and 2002
acquisitions. During 2004, the increase was partially offset by net proceeds from the sale of the Texas
Bank Buildings of approximately $4.0 million.

!

Financing Activities

Net cash flows provided by financing activities increased $38.4 million, or 86%, in 2004 as
compared to 2003. The increase is primarily due to an increase in net borrowings to finance our
property acquisitions and proceeds from common stock offerings, which were partially used to pay
down the Company’s secured and unsecured credit facilities. The remainder of the change is primarily
composed of scheduled principal payments on mortgage loans, dividend payments and payments into
€scrow accounts as requlred by certain lenders.

Net cash flows provided by financing activities decreased $1.5 million, or 3%, in 2003 as compared
to 2002. The change is primarily due to: (i) greater loan pay downs from an increase in proceeds from
our common stock offering in 2003, (ii) increased dividend payments due to an increase in the number
of shares outstanding which resulted from the mid-2002 and 2003 stock offerings, and (iii) increased
payments into escrow accounts as required by certain lenders.

Future Sources of Capital

The following table summarizes future minimum base rent to be received under non-cancelable
tenant leases at December 31, 2004 for the Company’s commercial properties expiring each year over
the next five years (excludes the Texas State Buﬂdlngs see “Significant Transactions—2005
Transactions™):

v Less fhan 1 Year 2-3 Years 4-5 Years Over 5 Years . Total
Minimum Rents . ...  $40,052,000  $54,210,000 $27,495,000 $8,965,000 $130,722,000

In January 2004, the Company filed a shelf registration statement under which the Company could
potentially raise up to $200 million through the issuance of common stock or preferred stock. At
December 31, 2004, there was approximately $157 million available in shelf registered securities. The
proceeds from those issuances, if any, would be used to acquire and improve new and existing
properties, repay borrowings under our lines of credit or other loans and for working capital and
general corporate purposes.

The Company has two credit facilities: a $42.0 million senior secured revolving line of credit with
KeyBank (Secured Facility), and a $40.0 million unsecured revolving line of credit with KeyBank
(Unsecured Facility). At December 31, 2004, the Unsecured Facility had a maturity date of
November 2007. At December 31, 2004, there was $32.9 million outstanding under the Secured Fac1hty _
and $24.9 million outstanding under the Unsecured Facility.
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As noted above, as a result of the amendments to our Secured Facility and Unsecured Facility, our
ability to borrow additional amounts under the Secured Facility has been terminated and our ability to
incur additional borrowings under the Unsecured Facility is subject to the approval of the lender in its
sole and absolute discretion. Moreover, the amendments to the Unsecured Facility restrict our ability to
incur any additional indebtedness from any other party without the prior written consent of the lender.
To the extent that we are unable to borrow additional funds, we may be unable to make any additional
acquisitions of office- properties and could be limited in our ability to fund tenant improvements or
make other necessary or desirable portfolio capital expenditures unless we issue additional equity in the
Company or sell one or more of our existing properties. In addition, we would be dependent upon cash
flow from our operations to cover these capital expenditures and our corporate operating expenses. As
a result, there can be no assurance that we will be able to execute our business plan, and our limited
access to capital could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and our operations.

Subject to the results of its strategic alternatives review and the availability of capital, the
Company may seek to acquire additional properties. In order to do so, we will try to utilize current
sources of debt financing and possibly incur additional debt and/or obtain additional equity capital. The
issuance of such securities or increase in debt to acquire additional properties, of which there is no
assurance, could adversely affect the amount of cash available to pay dividends to stockholders. Due to
the unknown outcome of the Company’s search for strategic alternatives, it is unclear whether we will
be able to effectively access the public equity markets or incur additional debt at attractive rates.

Future Uses of Capital, Contractual Commitments and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual commitments related to our debt
outstanding at December 31, 2004:

2009 and
2005 2006 2007 and 2008 thereafter Total
Secured mortgage loans and
notes payable(1)......... $36,061,458 $17,416,022 $49,435,177 $108,816,671 $211,729,328
Unsecured line of credit(1). . . —_ — 24,857,063 —_ 24,857,063
Total................... $36,061,458 $17,416,022 $74,292,240 $108,816,671 $236,586,391

(1) See “Future Sources of Capital” for information on the amendments to the Secured and
Unsecured Facilities.

Debt Covenants

Certain of its mortgage lenders require the Company to comply with certain debt covenants as
described in the specific loan documents, including the loan-to-value ratio, the interest coverage ratio, the
fixed charge coverage ratio and the dividend payout ratio. At December 31, 2004, the Company was not
in compliance with any of its debt covenants as required by the Secured and Unsecured Facilities, due to
cross default provisions. As previously noted, the Company received a waiver from KeyBank National
Association with respect to this event of non-compliance with these covenants for the year ended
December 31, 2004, As a result of the amendments to the Secured and Unsecured Facilities, the
Company believes that it will be able to comply with the revised covenants based on the 2005 budgeted
results of operations. In addition, the Company believes it will meet its obligations under the mandatory
repayments on the Secured and Unsecured Facilities by either: (i) completing a strategic transaction,
which may include a sale or recapitalization of all or a portion of the Company’s assets or a merger of
the Company; (ii) obtaining additional financing by refinancing certain assets, or (iii) issuing equity. If the
Company is unable to raise sufficient capital for the mandatory repayments, or if we are unable to
remain in compliance with our debt covenants, the bank could accelerate and demand repayment of
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outstanding amounts based on the terms of the amended facilities agreements. If this were to occur, the
Company may not be able to meet its obligations under the accelerated repayment obligations.

Inflation ‘
Management believes that inflation should not have a material adverse effect on our operations.

Our office leases require the tenants to pay increases in operating expenses should any inflationary
pressures materialize.

New Accounting Principles

In December, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 152, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing
Transactions an amendment of FASB Statements No. 66 and 67”. This Statement amends SFAS No. 66,
“Accounting for Sales of Real Estate” to reference the financial accounting and reporting guidance for
real estate time-sharing transactions that is provided in AICPA Statement of Position (SOP) 04-2,
“Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing Transactions.” This Statement also amends SFAS No. 67,
“Accounting for Costs and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects” to specify that guidance
relating to (a) incidental operations (b) costs incurred to sell real estate projects does not apply to real
estate time-sharing transactions. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2005. We do not believe that the adoption of SFAS No. 152 will have a material impact on our
financial position, net earnings or cash flows. :

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Non-monetary Assets”. This
Statement amends APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting for Non-monetary Transactions” to eliminate ‘the
exception for non-monetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general
exception for exchanges of non-monetary assets that do not have commercial substance. That exception
required that some non-monetary exchanges be recorded on a carryover basis versus this Statement,
which requires that an. entity record a non-monetary exchange at fair value and recognize any gain or
loss if the transaction has commercial substance. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2005. We do not believe that the adoption of SFAS No. 153 will have a material impact
on our financial position, net earnings or cash flows.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment”. This Statement is a
revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, and supersedes APB No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”. The Statement requires companies to recognize in the
income statement the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity based compensation issued
to employees. This Statement is effective as of the beginning of the first interim or annual period that
commences after June 15, 2005. We do not believe that the adoption of SFAS 123R will have a
material impact on our financial position, net earnings or cash flows.

Critical Accounting Policies

The discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations are
based upon its consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting prmaples generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial
statements require management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions. , ’

Critical accounting p011c1es are defmed as those that are reflective of significant judgments and

uncertainties, which would potentially result in materially different results under different assumptions
- and conditions. Set forth below is a summary. of the accounting policies management believes are
critical to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. The summary should be read in . -
conjunction with the more complete discussion of the Company’s accounting policies. included in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Investment in Real Estate

Upon acquisition, the purchase price of a property is allocated to land, building and improvements
and other intangible assets and associated liabilities as required by SFAS No. 141 “Business
Combinations.” The allocation to land is based on an estimate of its fair value based on all available
information including appraisals. The allocation to other intangible assets represents the value
associated with the in-place leases, including leasing commission, legal and other related costs. Also
required by SFAS No. 141, is the creation of an intangible asset or liability resulting from in-place
leases being above or below the market rental rates on the date of acquisition. This asset or liability is
amortized over the life of the related in-place leases as an adjustment to revenue.

Investment in real estate is stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Description Estimated Useful Lives
Land . .. .o e Not depreciated
Buildings and improvements .. ....... ... e 20 to 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . ............ .. ... ... .. ... 5 to 7 years
Tenant improvements, tenant leasing commissions and other

intangible assets . ........ .. . .. i Term of related lease

Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred and improvements are capitalized. The cost of
assets sold or retired and the related accumulated depreciation and/or amortization are removed from
the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in operations in the period in which such sale or
retirement occurs. Allocating the purchase price of a property to the different components of
investment in real estate, determining whether expenditures meet the criteria for capitalization and
assigning depreciable lives is considered to be critical because it requires management to exercise
significant judgment.

Valuation of Real Estate Assets

Long-lived assets to be held and used by the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The Company continually evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets based on
estimated future cash flows from and the estimated liquidation value of such long-lived assets, and
provides for impairment if such undiscounted cash flows are insufficient to recover the carrying amount
of the long-lived asset. Valuation of real estate assets is considered to be critical because the evaluation
of impairment and the determination of fair values involve management’s assumptions relating to
future economic events that could materially affect the determination of the fair value, and therefore
the carrying value of real estate.

Revenue Recognition

Certain leases provide for tenant occupancy during periods for which no rent is due or where
minimum rent payments increase during the term of the lease. Rental revenue is recorded for the full
term of each lease on a straight-line basis. Accordingly, the Company records a receivable from tenants
for rents that it expects to collect over the remaining lease term as deferred rents receivable. When the
Company acquires a property, the term of the existing leases is considered to commence as of the
acquisition date for the purposes of this calculation. Revenue recognition is considered to be critical
because the evaluation of the realizability of such deferred rents receivable involves management’s
assumptions relating to such tenant’s viability.
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Income Taxes

“The Company operates in a manner intended to enable it to continue to qualify as a REIT under
Sections 856-860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Under those sections, a REIT
which distributes at least 90% of its REIT taxable income as a dividend to its shareholders each year
and which meets certain other conditions will not be taxed on that portion of its taxable income which
is distributed to its shareholders. The Company intends to distribute to our shareholders 90% of our
taxable income. Therefore, no provision for Federal income taxes is required. If the Company fails to
distribute the required amount of income to our shareholders, or fails to meet other REIT
requirements, we may fail to qualify as a REIT and substantial adverse tax consequences may result.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our primary market risk exposure is to changes in interest rates as a result of our secured and
unsecured lines of credit. At December 31, 2004, we had $236.6 million of mortgage loans and notes
payable (including our lines of credit), or approximately 58% of total market capitalization based on
the common share price at December 31, 2004. Our interest rate risk objective is to limit the impact of
interest rate fluctuations on earnings and cash flows and to lower our overall borrowing costs. To
achieve this objective, we manage our exposure to fluctuations in market interest rates for our
borrowings through the use of fixed rate debt instruments to the extent that reasonably favorable rates
are obtainable with such arrangement. At December 31, 2004, approximately 76% of our outstanding
debt was subject to fixed rated with a weighted average interest rate of 6.1%. We regularly review
interest rate exposure on our outstanding borrowings in an effort to minimize the risk of interest rate
fluctuations. '

The table below provides information about our liabilities that are sensitive to changes in interest
rates as of December 31, 2004. As the table incorporates only those exposures that existed as of
December 31, 2004, it does not consider those exposures or positions which could arise after that date
(in thousands). ‘

Estimated

Total Fair
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Balance Value(l)

Interest rate sensitive liabilities:

Unsecured line of credit . .. ........ .8 — 8§ — $2487 $§ — $ — $§ — $24857 §$ 24857
Average nominal interest rate(2) . . ... — —. 5.63% — — — — —
Secured line of credit . . .. ........ .. $32900 $§ — $ —'% — % — $§ — $32900 $ 32900
Average nominal interest rate(2) .. ... 4.96% — — - — — -— —
Mortgages payable: T :
Fixedrate debt ... .,....... e $ 3,161 $17416 $11,269 $38,167 $15,644  $93,172  $178,829 $182,425
Average nominal interest rate(2) . .. .. 6.04% 7.54% 562% 520% 4.74% 6.57% — -

(1) The estimated fair value for each of the liabilities listed was calculated by discounting the actual principal payment stream at
prevailing interest rates (obtained from third-party financial institutions) on currently available on debt instruments with
similar terms and features. -

(2) Reflects the weightéd—average nominal interest rate on the liabilities outstanding during each period, giving effect to
principal payments and final maturities during each period, in any.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

‘Our Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and our Statements of Operations,
Shareholder’s Equity and Cash Flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004 and Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation, together with the
reports of KPMG LLP, registered public accounting firm, are included under Item 15 of this Form 10-K
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and are incorporated herein by reference. Selected quarterly financial data is presented in Note 12 of
our audited financial statements in this Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

a. Evaluation of our Disclosure Controls. As of the end of the period covered by this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have evaluated the
effectiveness of our “disclosure controls and procedures” (“Disclosure Controls”). Disclosure Controls,
as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), are procedures that are designed with the objective of ensuring that information required to be
disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act, such as this Annual Report, is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms. Disclosure Controls are also designed with the objective of ensuring that
such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not
expect that our Disclosure Controls will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter
how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the
objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact
that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their
costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the company have been
detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be
faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. The design of any system of
controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there
can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future
conditions.

Based upon their controls evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that our Disclosure Controls are effective at a reasonable assurance level.

b. Changes in internal control over financial reporting. The Company carried out an evaluation
under the supervision and with participation of the Company’s management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as of December 31,
2004. Based on their evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by
this report to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in its reports that it
files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commissions rules and
forms. There was no change in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting that occurred
during the period covered by this report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

c. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Act”) imposed many requirements regarding corporate
governance and financial reporting. One requirement under section 404 of the Act, beginning with this
annual report, is for management to report on the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting
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and for our independent registered public accountants to attest to this report. In late November 2004,
the Securities and Exchange Commission issued an exemptive order providing a 45 day extension for
the filing of these reports and attestations by eligible companies. We elected to utilize this 45 day
extension, therefore, this Form 10-K does not include these reports. These reports will be included in
an amended Form 10-K expected to be filed in April 2005. During 2004 and 2005, we have spent
considerable time and resources analyzing, documenting and testing our system of internal controls.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On March 16, 2005, the Company entered into a First Amendment to the Unsecured Facility with
Key Bank and a Third Amendment to the Secured Facility with Key Bank, copies of which are
provided as Exhibit 10.12E and Exhibit 10.12F to this Form 10-K, respectively, and are incorporated
herein by reference.

On March 15, 2005, in connection with the Company’s review of strategic alternatives, the Board
approved the formation of a special committee composed of all five of the independent directors. Each
committee member shall be entitled to receive (whether or not a proposed transaction is agreed to or
consummated), in his or her capacity as such, a fee in the amount of $25,000 ($50,000 in the case of
the lead outside director) to be paid on the earlier of (i) the date of the consummation of a proposed
transaction or (ii) the date of termination or cessation of all discussions with respect to any proposed
transaction, plus a $500 fee per committee meeting that such member attends.

On March 15, 2005 the Board approved increases of $10,000 in base salary for Kathryn Hale,
Chief Financial Officer, from $150,000 to $160,000, and for John Greenman, Chief Investment Officer,
from $210,000 to $220,000, each effective January 1, 2005.

In September 2004, the Board of Directors approved the AmeriVest Properties Inc. Deferred
Compensation Plan for Directors and Executives, a copy of which is provided as Exhibit 10.17 to this
Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference. A description of the Deferred Compensation Plan is
presented in Note 10 of our audited financial statements in this Form 10-K.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference to the description under the section
entitled “Directors and Executive Officers” of our definitive proxy statement for the 2005 annual
meeting of our stockholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the description under the section
entitled “Executive Compensation” of our definitive proxy statement for the 2005 annual meeting of
our stockholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the description under the section
entitled “Directors and Executive Officers Beneficial Owners of Securities and Equity Compensation
Plan Information” of our definitive proxy statement for the 2005 annual meeting of our stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference to the description under the section
entitled “Transactions Between AmeriVest and Related Parties” of our definitive proxy statement for
the 2005 annual meeting of our stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the description under the section
entitled “Ratification of Relationship with Public Accountants” of our definitive proxy statement for the
2005 annual meeting of our stockholders.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT S AND SCHEDULE AND REPORTS ON
FORM 8-K

The following documents are filed as part of. this report:

(a) Financial Statements and Schedule:

1.

Financial Statements

See Index to Fmanc1al Statements .and Schedule on page 45 of this report, which is

_incorporated by reference

. Financial Statement Schedule:

See Schedule III on page S-1 of thrs report, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

All other schedules have been omitted since the required mformatron is presented in the financial
statements and the related notes or is not applicable.

3.

Exhibits
See Index to Exhibits on page 47 of this report, which is incorporated herein by

- reference.

(b)' Reports on Form 8-K: |

The following reports on Form 8-K were filed during the last quarter of the period
covered by this report:

1. Form 8-K, filed October 26, 2004 (Items 1.01 and 2.03 regarding amendments to the
Company’s Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility).
2. Form 8-K, filed December 1, 2004 (Item 8.01 regarding announcement of exploration
of strategic alternatives).
3. Form 8K, filed December 10, 2004 (Item 1.01 regarding announcement of change of
control agreements with certain executives).
(c) Exhibits:

The exhibits required by Item 601 of Registration S-K are listed in the Index to Exhibits
on page 47 of this Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUTNING FIRM

The Board of Directors
AmeriVest Properties Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AmeriVest Properties Inc. and
subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of AmeriVest Properties Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

/s/f KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 16, 2005




AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
| Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

L 2004 2003
‘ s ASSETS |
Investment in real estate ' w ’ ‘
Land............. ... .. e e e ISP $ 58,338,781 §$ 28,838,214
Buildings and unprovements ........... e e e 256,128,341 184,519,890
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . .. ............. e e e 1,451,152 799,730
Tenant IMPIOVEMENTS . . . . v v v v v v b vt e s e e e e 15,157,570 6,144,440
Tenant leasing COMMISSIONS . .. ...\ vu i fin e e 3,101,178 1,061,160
Intanglblc ] £ et e 23,019,763 11,468,120
Assets—held for sale (net of $672,244 of accumulated deprec1at10n) .......... ' T — 3,196,877
Less: accumulated deprematlon and amortization . . .. .. L v e e © (26,383,036)  (12,134,025)
Net investment in real estate . .... ... ... .. I 330,813,749 223,894,406
Cash and cash equivalents . .. ...... e e e et e e 1,859,660 1,47_7,585
Escrow deposits . . . .. oo vttt i e e e e e 7,726,652 5,778,427
Investment in affiliate . . . ....... ... ... .. i o e —_ 1,364,032
Due from related party . . .. ....... e e e e , . . — 3,371,526
Due from affiliate .......... e e e e e , —_ 262,347
Accounts receivable . ........... . e e S 671,251 296,377
Deferred rents receivable ........ e e R P e e 3,430,609 1,401,455
Deferred financing costs, net . . . .o v 0o i Ll e e 2,927,696 2,301,043
Prepaid expenses and otherassets ............... ... . i 524,072 353,264
TOtal @SSEES + & o v v it it e e e e e e $347,953,689  $240,500,462
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
anbﬂmes S
Secured mortgage loans and notes payable P $211,729,328  $143,087,936
Unsecured line of credit. . . . ... ... it it it it et e i 24,857,063 15,149,725
Liabilities—held forsale ....... e e e — 1,296,049
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses . . ... ... i 4,524,282 2,736,657
Accrued real estate taXeS . . . . . v it i e e e e e 4,486,712 3,169,183
Prepaid rents, deferred revenue and security deposits . . ... ...... ... ... .. 4,190,202 2,694,335
Dividends payable . ........... .. .. il 3,116,130 2,262,170
Total liabilities. . . ........... e e e e e e e 252,903,717 170,396,055
Minority interest .. ............... e e 1,580,057 —
Shareholders’ equity: ‘
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value
Authorized: 5,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding: none . . ... .. ... ... oL i — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value
Authorized: 75,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding: 23,982,233 and 17,401,309 shares, respectively . . . .. .. 23,082 17,401
Capital inexcessof parvalue .. .......... ... i 132,585,840 91,706,371
Distributions in excess of accumulated eammgs ........................ (39,139,907)  (21,619,365)
Total shareholders’ equity .. ...... ... .. 93,469,915 70,104,407
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ............ ... ... ........ $347,953,680  $240,500,462

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Real Estate Operating Revenue:

Rentalrevenues ..................... e - $45,075,225  $28,793,825 $15,293,973
Real Estate Operating Expenses:

Property operating expenses—

Operating eXpenses . ............coveverennnn.. 13,476,493 | 7,822,693 3,740,903
Real estate taxes .. ......cvviiiiiie i e 5,829,535 3,639,508 1,548,763
General and administrative expenses . ............... 4,370,403 3,526,097 1,746,184
Advisoryfee . ...... ... i — — 1,367,380
Interestexpense ...........co ity 12,443,610 7,747,017 4,016,457
Depreciation and amortization expense. . ............. 14,387,431 6,892,207 3,233,259
Impairment of investment in real estate . ............. 1,160,000 1,465,932 275,000
Otherexpenses . ........ccieiii it 323,626 1,650 8,920
Total operating €Xpenses. . . .. ... .ovvuiii i 51,991,098 31,095,104 15,936,866
Loss from continuing operations . .................... (6,915,873)  (2,301,279) (642,893)
Other Income/(Loss):
Interestincome . . ... .ttt i e 87,016 73,470 164,519
Equity in loss of affiliate ......................... (18,076) (54,953) (66,295)
Minority interest . .. ...... .. i 256,246 — —
Total otherincome . . . ...........c.ovuvnenrnnn. .. 325,186 18,517 98,224
Loss before discontinued operations .................. (6,590,687)  (2,282,762) (544,669)
Discontinued operations . .............ciiiiiiiii., 687,735 302,342 387,395
Net oSS . .ot e e e $(5,902,952) $(1,980,420) $ (157,274)
Loss per Share:
BasiC ... e e e L8 (0.26) $ 0.13) (0.02)
Diluted. ....... .. e $ (0.26) $ (0.13) (0.02)
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding:
Basic ................ e e e e 22,348,811 14,686,369 9,341,608
Diluted . . ... i e e 22,348,811  '14,686,369 9,341,608

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED: STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

S l?istributions
Common stk pially o Excess o
Shares Amount Par Value Earnings Total
Balance at December 31, 2001. ... 6,682,259 § 6,682 § 31,132,650 $ (6,142,347) $ 24,996,985
Issuance of common stock: ’ :
. Public offering, net of offering :
COSES v e 4,140,000 4,140 22,744,898 — 22,749,038
Acquisition of land .......... 52,893 53 319,947 — 320,000
Property improvements ....... 21,114 21 117,373 - — 117,394
Warrants exercised .......... 54,150 54 270,696 _— 270,750
Stock options exercised . ...... 60,000 60 270,756 — 270,816
Dividend Re-Investment Plan n
C@DRIP) ... oo .. 47,196 47 269,830 —_ 269,877
Equity-based compensation . . . . 2,648 3 - 15,730 — 15,733
Issuance of incentive warrants . . . . —_ — 61,095 — 61,095
Amortization of incentive .

Warrants ... ....... 000 0a... — — - 44,508 — 44,508
Dividends declared-............. ‘ — — _— (5,063,122) (5,063,122)
Netloss . .......... . iin... — — — (157,274) (157,274)
Balance at December 31, 2002. ... 11,060,260 11,060 55,247,483  (11,362,743) 43,895,800
Issuance of common stock:. '

‘Public offering, net of offering

COSES « v v i i iie e ... 5,750,000 5,750 33,261,703 — 33,267,453
Warrants exercised - . ...... —_— 495,045 495 2,474,730 — 2,475,225
Stock options exercised .. ..... 33,247 33 163,015 — 163,048
DRIP............cvu... 49,081 49 297,936 — 297,985

~ Equity-based compensation . . 13,676 14 - 261,504 — 261,518
Dividends declared . . .......... — — — (8,276,202)  (8,276,202)
Netloss . ....vvvieevennnnn.. — — —_ (1,980,420) (1,980,420)
Balance at December 31, 2003. ... 17,401,309 17,401 91,706,371  (21,619,365) 70,104,407
Issuance of common stock:

Public offering, net of offering

COSES v e e i e e it 6,325,000 6,325 39,889,104 — 39,895,429
Warrants exercised .......... 101,062 101 103,949 — 104,050
Stock options exercised ....... 92,753 93 477,106 — 477,199
DRIP............ e 12,281 12 82,196 — 82,208
Equity-based compensation . . .. 49,828 50 327,114 — 327,164

Dividends declared . . .......... — — —  (11,617,590) (11,617,590)
Netloss ........covievnnn.. —_ — — (5,902,952)  (5,902,952)
Balance at December 31, 2004. ... 23,982,233 $23,982 $132,585,840 $(39,139,907) $ 93,469,915

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net 1SS . .o e e e e e e $ (5,902,952)% (1,980,420)$ (157,274)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities—
Depreciation and amortization eXpense . . ... ... .. ... b 14,522,578 7,023,923 3,362,508
Impairment of investment inrealestate . . . . ....... ... ... ., 1,160,000 1,465,932 275,000
Gainonsaleof realestate .. ......... ... .. ... i, (574,276) — -
Amortization of deferred financingcosts . ............ ... . .. . L. 753,097 515,318 189,755
Write-off of unamortized deferred financingcosts . . ... .................. 150,518 29,843 135,258
Equity in loss of unconsolidated affiliate . ................. . ... .. ... 18,076 54,953 66,295
Minority interest. . . . . ..o e (256,246) — —
Equity-based compensation . . . . .. ..o it e e e 327,164 261,518 60,241
Changes in assets and liabilities—
Accounts receivable . .. ... ... L e e e (357,055) (9,686) 95,989
Deferred rent receivable . .. ... ... ... . o (2,155,256)  (729,718)  (297,345)
Prepaid expenses and otherassets . . ............. ... .. .. . ... (170,808) 121,501 (33,306)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . ... ...y 1,679,614 1,402,037 1,070,280
Other accrued liabilities .. .......... ... ... ... .. ... . . 2,675,343 2,495,717 659,644
Net cash flows provided by operating activities . . . . ... ... ........... 11,869,797 10,650,918 5,427,045
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of real estate, met . . . .. ... .o e e (82,562,817) (47,858,472) (45,402,628)
Capital expenditures. . . . . . ... ... L e (5,337,601) (4,148,526) (3,259,528)
Tenant IMpProvements . . . . . ... v vttt ettt e e b e e e (8,629,344) (3,322,017) (1,191,800)
Leasing COMMISSIONS . . . . . v v vttt ettt it e e e (1,956,139)  (688,809)  (165,362)
Deposits on real estate acquisitions . . .. ............... S — — (170,000)
Proceeds from sale, netof closingcosts. . . . ........ . i 4,049,229 — —
Ending cash balance of newly consolidated affiliate ....................... 92,732 — —
Amounts paid to unconsolidated affiliate . . . .. ........... ... ... L, (109,661) (44,769)  (123,104)
Net cash flows used in investing activities . . .. ..................... (94,453,601) (56,062,593) (50,312,422)
CASH FL.OWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Additions to mortgage loans and notes payable . . . .. ....... .. .. . 0L 119,514,225 110,899,725 60,589,117
Payments of mortgage loans and notes payable . . . .. ....... ... .. ... .. .. (63,677,529) (88,985,672) (30,971,098)
Payment of deferred financingcosts . . .. ... ... ... oo (674,194) (1,602,297)  (971,035)
Net proceeds from common stock offering . . . . ......... ... . . 39,895,429 33,267,453 22,749,038
Net proceeds from exercising of options and warrants . . ................... 581,249 1,588,273 541,566
Net change in escrow deposits . .. ........ . i (1,948,225) (3,442,908) (1,662,306)
Dividends paid . . ... ... i e e (10,725,076)  (7,153,880) (4,190,694)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities . . .. ... ............... 82,965,879 44,570,694 46,084,588
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .................... 382,075 (840,981) 1,199,211
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNINGOFYEAR .. .............. 1,477,585 2,318,566 1,119,355
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDOF YEAR ..................... $ 1,859,660 § 1,477,585 § 2,318,566
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cashpaid forinterest . . ... .. ... it et $ 10,782,906 $ 6,841,482 § 3,763,091
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES . .
Mortgage loans assumed . . . .. .. .. e e e e e e $ 20,395,685 $ 31,380,000 $ 17,000,000
Common stock issuedtothe DRIP .. . ... .. ... ... .. ... ... ... ..., $ 82208 § 297,985 § 269,877
Common stock issued for improvements of real estate .. ... ................ $ — 3 — % 117,3%4

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

NOTE 1—ORGANIZATION

AmeriVest Properties Inc. is incorporated under the laws of the State of Maryland. The Company
is a fully integrated, self-administered and self-managed real estate investment trust (REIT), which is
principally engaged through our subsidiaries in owning, managing, leasing and acquiring commercial
office space. The Company primarily invests in and operates commercial office buildings in selective
markets and leases the commercial office buildings to small and medium size tenants. At December 31,
2004, we owned and operated, through our wholly-owned subsidiaries, the following properties:

Property ‘ ’ ] _ Location
AmeriVest Plaza at Inverness. . .. ... ... it Englewood, CO
Arrowhead Fountains ... ...... ...ttt rnnreennn Peoria, AZ
Camelback Lakes .......... e e e e Phoenix, Arizona
(@73 41 7= O Denver, CO
Chateau Plaza. . . . ... ... i i i i i it e e e s Dallas, TX
Financial Plaza .. .. ... ...ttt it ae e Mesa, AZ
Greenhill Park . ....... ... .. i e e Addison, TX
Hackberry View ....... ... . i Irving, Texas
Hampton Court ............. PSR Dallas, TX
Kellogg Building . .......... e e e e Littleton, CO
Keystone Office Park ................. e Indianapolis, IN
Parkway Centre IT. .. ..... .. oo i Plano, TX
Parkway Centre III ....... e e e e e e e Plano, TX
Scottsdale NOTtE . . .. o v ittt i e e e e Scottsdale, AZ
Sheridan Center . ....... ... i i Denver, CO
Southwest Gas Building. . . .................... PP Phoenix, AZ
Panorama Falls(1) . .. ... ... i Englewood, CO
Texas State Buildings(2) . ..... ... Texas

(1) 20% of the property is owned by the Company, 80% of the property is owned by one other
investor‘ as tenants in common.

(2) At December 31, 2004, 11 of these 13 buildings were leased primarily to various agencies of the
State of Texas. The buildings are located in Lubbock, El Paso, Clint, Temple, Bellville, Columbus,
Hempstead, Mission, Arlington, Marshall, Amarillo and Paris, Texas. The Company disposed of
these buildings March 2, 2005. See Note 15 for details on the transaction.

On November 22, 2004, the Company announced that it had retained Bear, Stearns & Co., Inc. to
assist our Board of Directors in undertaking a review of a broad range of strategic alternatives for the
Company. These alternatives include identifying an institutional capital partner to assist in the
Company’s growth going forward, a sale or recapitalization of all or a portion of the Company’s
properties, the potential sale or merger of the Company, and other possible transactions designed to
enhance shareholder value. With the assistance of Bear Stearns, the Board is evaluating the Company’s
strategic alternatives; however, such an evaluation may not result in a transaction of any kind.
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AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the consolidated operations of the
Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant inter-company accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. For our joint venture in which we own less than 100% of the
equity interest, we consolidate the property if we have the direct or indirect ability to make decisions
about the entity’s activities based on the term of the joint venture agreement which specify the sharing
of participating and protective rights such as decisions regarding major leases, encumbering the entity
with debt and whether to dispose of the entity. We would also consolidate a joint venture if we own
less than a 100% equity interest if we are deemed the primary beneficiary in a variable interest entity,
as defined in FASB Interpretation 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, Revised” (FIN 46R).
Certain prior period balances have been reclassified to conform to current period presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Investment in Real Estate

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business
Combinations” (“Statement 141”), we allocate the purchase price of real estate to land, building,
tenant improvements and, if determined to be material, intangibles, such as the value of above, below
and at-market leases, origination costs associated with the in-place leases, and the value of tenant
relationships, if any. We depreciate the amount allocated to building and other intangible assets over
their estimated useful lives. The values of the above and below market leases are amortized and
recorded as either an increase (in the case of below market leases) or a decrease (in the case of above
market leases) to rental income over the remaining term of the associated lease. The value associated
with in-place leases and tenant relationships is amortized over the expected term. If a tenant vacates its
space prior to the contractual termination of the lease and no rental payments are being made on the
lease, any unamortized balance of the related intangible will be written off. The tenant improvements
and origination costs are amortized as an expense over the remaining life of the lease (or charged
against earnings if the lease is terminated prior to its contractual expiration date).

In accordance with Statement 141 and its applicability to acquired in-place leases, we perform (or
engage a third party to perform) the following procedures for properties we acquire:

* Estimate the value of the real estate “as if vacant” as of the acquisition date;

* Allocate the value among land, building improvements, building and equipment to determine the
associated asset life for each;

* Compute the value of the difference between the “as if vacant” value and the purchase price,
which will represent the total intangible assets;
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AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

* Allocate the value of the above and below market leases to the intangible assets after
determining the associated life of the above/below market leases;

¢ Calculate the value and associated life of the tenant relationships, if any, by taking the direct
identifiable benefits of the customer relationship and discounting them to present value;

+ Estimate the fair value of the:in-place tenant improvements and leasing commissions and
calculate the associated asset life; and

* Allocate the remaining intangible value to the in-place leases and their associated lives.

Rental properties are individually evaluated for impairment when conditions exist which may
indicate that it is ‘probable that the sum of expected future cash flows (on an undiscounted basis) from
a rental property over the anticipated holding period is less than its historical net cost basis. Upon
determination that a permanent impairment has occurred, rental properties are reduced to their fair
value. For properties to be disposed of, an impairment loss is recognized when the fair value of the
property, less the estimated cost to sell, is less than the carrying amount of the property measured at
the time we have a commitment to sell the property which is not subject to any significant
contingencies. A property to be disposed of is reported at the lower of its carrying amount or its
estimated fair value, less its cost to sell. Subsequent to the date that a property is held for disposition,
depreciation expense is not recorded.

Investment in real estate is stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed' ona’
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Description Estimated Useful Lives
Land ..... ... Not depreciated
Buildings and improvements . ..........0............ 20 to 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment .................... 5 to 7 years ’
Tenant improvements, tenant leasing comm1351ons and other

intangible assets. . ........... e [ Term of related lease

Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred and improvements are capitalized. The cost of
assets sold or retired and the related accumulated depreciation and/or amortization are removed from -
the accounts and the resulting gam or loss is reﬂected in operations in the period in which such sale or
retirement occurs:

1

Other Intangible Assets

The intangible assets are amortized over the remaining life of the in-place leases which generally
range from 24 to 57 months. Estimated amortization expense for the next five years is: $6.4 million in
2005, $5.3 million in' 2006, $3.4 million in 2007, $1.2 million in 2008, and $7,000 in 2009.

Cash Equivalents

Cash and cashleduivalénts' consist of cash on hand and shoﬁ-tem, highly liquid investments. For
purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers as cash equivalents all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three: months or less at ‘the time of purchase.
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AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Escrow Deposits

In accordance with the loan agreements for a majority of the Company’s loans, the lenders require
the Company to maintain reserves for real estate taxes, property insurance, capital improvements
and/or tenant improvements.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company periodically evaluates the collectibility of amounts due from tenants and maintains
an allowance for estimated losses resulting from the inability of tenants to make required payments
under the term of the lease agreement. Management exercises judgment in establishing the allowance
and considers payment history, personal guarantees and credit status in developing the estimate.

Deferred Leasing and Financing Costs

Deferred leasing and financing costs include commissions paid to third parties for new leases or
the renewal of leases and fees paid to third parties to obtain long-term financing. The deferred leasing
costs are recorded at cost and amortized over the terms of the respective leases. The deferred financing
costs are amortized over the term of the respective debt instrument on a straight-line basis, which
approximates the effective yield. The deferred leasing and deferred finance costs are included as a
component of total operating expenses and interest expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

Fair Value

The Company’s financial instruments include accounts receivable, deferred rents receivable,
accounts payable and accrued expenses and mortgage loans and notes payable. The fair value of the
Company’s mortgage loans and notes payable is estimated by discounting the future cash flows of each
instrument at current rates expected for similar debt instruments of comparable maturities and risk.
The fair values of these financial instruments were not materially different from their carrying or
contract values with the exception of mortgage loans and notes payable as detailed below:

2004 2003

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value
Secured mortgage loans and

notes payable ... .......... $211,729,328 $215,325,363 $143,087,936 $144,588,094

Unsecured line of credit. ... ... 24,857,063 24,857,063 15,149,725 15,149,725
Liabilities—held for sale. ... ... — — 1,296,049 1,403,492
Totaldebt . ................ $236,586,391 $240,182,426 $159,533,710 $161,141,311

Revenue Recognition

Certain leases provide for tenant occupancy during periods for which no rent is due or where
minimum rent payments increase during the non-cancelable term of the lease. The Company records
rental revenue for the full term of each lease on a straight-line basis, which includes the effects of rent
steps and rent abatements. Accordingly, the Company records a receivable from tenants for rents that
the Company expects to collect over the remaining lease term as deferred rents receivable in the
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AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

accompanying consolidated balance sheets. When the Company acquires a property, the term of
existing leases is considered to commence as of the acquisition date for the purposes of this calculation.

: We recognize income from rent once all of the following criteria are met in accordance with SEC
Staff Accounting Bulletin 104:

* The agreement has been fully executed and delivered;
~* Services have been rendered;
* The amount is fixed or determinable, and

* The collectibility is reasonably assured.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company leases office space to commercial businesses in metropolitan Denver, Dallas,
Phoenix and Indianapolis. The terms of the leases generally require basic rent payments at the
beginning of each month. Credit risk associated with the lease agreements is limited to the amount of
rents receivable from tenants less any related security deposits.

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk,
consist principally of cash and cash equivalents. The Company maintains cash accounts at four financial
institutions. The Company periodically evaluates the credit worthiness of these financial institutions,
and maintains cash accounts only in large high quality financial institutions, thereby minimizing
exposure for deposits in excess of federally insured amounts. On occasion, cash on deposit may exceed -
federally insured amounts.

Sales of Properties

The Company :accounts for the sale of properties under the full accrual method. Gains or losses on
sale are recognized only after closing takes place, title has transferred, an adequate down payment has
been received by the Company and the collectibility of the receivable from the buyer, if applicable, is
reasonably assured.

Equity-Based Compensation

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25 and related
interpretations in accounting for its equity-based compensation. Accordingly, the Company does not
recognize compensation cost for options granted to employees whose exercise price is equal to or
exceeds the fair value of the underlying stock as of the grant date and which qualify for fixed plan
treatment. During 2004, we did not grant any options or restricted shares to company employees. With
respect to options granted prior to 2004, the Company did not recognize any compensation expense
associated with option grants in the accompanying statement of operations, as all options granted had
an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Equity-based compensation issued to non-employees is accounted for based on the fair value of
the equity instruments issued. The measurement date is considered to be the issuance date, or if there
are' performance vesting provisions when earned.

The Company has adopted the dlsclosure -only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 148, “Accountmg for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure, an
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AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plan
been determined based on the fair value at the grant date consistent with the provisions of SFAS

No. 148, the Company’s net loss and loss per share for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 would have been changed to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

2004 2003 2002

Net loss—asreported ........................ - 8(5,902,952) $(1,980,420) $(157,274)
Plus: Recognized equity-based compensation ....... 327,164 261,518 15,733
Total equity-based compensation expense based on fair

value. . ... .. e S (458208)  (473411)  (29,239)
Net 10S5—pro forma . ... .....oouorenenennn... $(6,033,996) $(2,192,313) $(170,780)
Loss per share (basic)—as reported ... ........... $ (0.26) $ (0.13) § (0.02)
Loss per share (diluted)—as reported............. $ (0.26) $ (0.13) § (0.02)
Loss per share (basic)—proforma ............... $ 0.27) $ (0.15) $ (0.02)
Loss per share (diluted)—pro forma ............. $ 0.27) $ (0.15) $ (0.02)

The fair value of each grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2004 2003 2002

Dividendyield .. ........ ... .. .. ... .. 7.0% 79% 8.5%
Volatility .. .o 9.3% 27.0% 27.0%
DISCOUnt rate . . .. oottt Lo, 27% 29% 29%

Expected life (years)........... S 22 46 50

Income Taxes

We have made an election to be taxed as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, as we believe we qualify as a REIT and have made all required distributions of our taxable
income. See Note 13 for more information on income taxes.

Loss per Share

There are no adjustments necessary to the basic weighted average number of common shares
outstanding to arrive at the diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding as the
Company recognized a net loss for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and the impact
would be anti-dilutive. The amounts excluded from the calculation at December 31, 2004, due to their
anti-dilutive effect are as follows: 10,322 options, 12,744 warrants and 92,800 shares of restricted
common stock.

New Accounting Principles

In December, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 152, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing
Transactions an amendment of FASB Statements No. 66 and 67”. This Statement amends SFAS No. 66,
“Accounting for Sales of Real Estate” to reference the financial accounting and reporting guidance for
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* AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO: CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

real estate time-sharing transactions that is provided in AICPA Statement of Position (SOP) 04-2,
“Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing Transactions.” This Statement. also amends SFAS No. 67,
“Accounting for Costs and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects” to specify that guidance
relating to (a) incidental operations (b) costs incurred to sell real estate projects does not apply to real
estate time-sharing transactions. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2005. We do not believe that the adoption of SFAS No. 152 will have a material impact on our
financial position, net earnings or cash flows. :

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Non-monetary Assets”. ThlS
Statement amends APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting for Non-monetary Transactions” to eliminate the
exception for non-monetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general
exception for exchanges of non-monetary assets that do not have commercial substance. That exception
required that some non- monetary exchanges be recorded on a carryover basis versus this Statement,
which requires that an entity record a non-monetary exchange at fair value and recognize any gain or
loss if the transaction has commercial substance. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2005. We do not believe that the adoption of SFAS No. 153 will have a material impact
on our financial posxtlon net earnings or cash flows.

In Decembet 2004 the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 revised 2004, “Share-Based Payment” This:
Statement is a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, and supersedes
APB No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”. The Statement requires companies to = -
recognize in the income statement the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity based
compensation issued to employees. This Statement is effective as of the beginning of the first interim
or annual period that commences after June 15, 2005. We do not believe that the adoption of
SFAS 123R will have a material impact on our financial position, net earnings or cash flows.

NOTE 3—ACQUISITIONS AND DEVELOPMENTS
2004 Transactions:

On November 12, 2004, the Company acquired the Hampton Court office building. Hampton
'Court is located in Dallas, Texas and contains approximately 108,200 square feet. The purchase price
for Hampton Court was $16.3 million, which was funded with $8.4 million of cash and the assumption
of a $7 9 million non- recourse five-year mortgage loan. :

On October 25, 2004, the Company acquired the 5.2 acres of land underlying its Greenhill Park
office property in Addison, Texas for $14.5 million in cash. The Greenhill Park building, purchased by
the Company in December 2003, was subject to a ground lease with 80 years remaining on the term.

On September 13, 2004, the Company- acquired the Parkway Centre III office building. Parkway
Centre III is located in Plano, Texas and contains approximately 152,600 square feet. The purchase
price of $23.4 million was funded with $5.5 million of cash and a $15.2 million non-recourse five-year
mortgage. The remaining $2.7 million of acquxsttlon funds came from tax-deferred exchange proceeds
from the. dlsposmon of our Texas Bank Buildings in March 2004.

On May 7, 2004, the Company acquired the Hackberry View office property locatéd in Irving,’
Texas. The purchase price was $16.8 million, which was paid with approximately $12.2 million from the
assumption of the existing first and second mortgage loans and the balance in cash.

On March 16, 2004, the Company acquired the Camelback Lakes office building. Camelback Lakes
is located in Phoenix, Arizona and contains approximately 203,000 square feet on 12.04 acres of land.
The purchase price for Camelback Lakes was $32.0 million, which was paid with $21.0 million from our
Secured Facility and the balance from our Unsecured Facility.
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Pro Forma Financial Information

The following unaudited pro forma financial information is presented as if the Company had
completed the 2004 acquisitions at January 1, 2004. This information is presented for illustrative
purposes only and may not be indicative of the results that actually would have occurred if the
acquisitions had been in effect on the dates indicated or which may be obtained in the future. .

2004
RENtAl TEVENUE . « « v« e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $51,210,424
N D $(6,008,355)
(Loss)per share—basicand diluted . . ... ....... ... ... ... ... $ (0.27)

2003 Transactions

On December 4, 2003, the Company acquired the Greenhill Park office building located in
Addison, Texas. Greenhill Park. The purchase price for Greenhill Park was $10.5 million, which was
paid with $5.3 million from the Secured Facility and the balance in cash from a portion of the proceeds
from our 2003 public offering. See ‘2004 Transactions” above for a discussion of the purchase of the
land.

On October 7, 2003, the Company acquired the Scottsdale Norte office building located in
Scottsdale, Arizona. The purchase price for Scottsdale Norte was $12.3 million, which was paid with
$6.6 million from the assumption of the existing loan from Southern Farm Bureau Life Insurance
Company and the balance in cash from a portion of the proceeds from our 2003 public offering.

On September 10, 2003, the Company acquired the Financial Plaza office building located in
Mesa, Arizona. The purchase price for Financial Plaza was $39.0 million, which was paid with
$24.8 million from the assumption of the existing loan from Allstate Life Insurance Company and the
balance in cash from a portion of the proceeds from our 2003 public offering.

During 2003, the Company completed the construction of a building adjacent to the existing
Keystone Office Park in Indianapolis, Indiana for approximately $1.3 million. This building was
constructed to accommodate the expansion needs of some of the existing tenants as well as market
demand. The building opened for occupancy in August 2003.

On February 6, 2003, the Company acquired the Southwest Gas office building located in Phoenix,
Arizona. The purchase price for the Southwest Gas Building was $17.0 million, which was paid with
$11.9 million from the Secured Facility and the balance from a short-term loan, also from Fleet
National Bank. This short-term loan was refinanced with the Unsecured Facility.
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NOTE 4—DISCONTINUED CPERATIONS

SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment of Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” requires
discontinued operations presented for disposals of a “component” of an entity. In accordance with
SFAS No. 144, for all periods presented, the Company reclassified its Consolidated Statements of
Operations to reflect properties which became held for sale subsequent to December 31, 2001; as
discontinued operations and reclassified our Consolidated Balance Sheets to reflect assets and liabilities
related to such properties as “assets—held for sale” and “liabilities—held for sale”.

On March 16, 2004, the Company sold its Texas Bank Buildings for $4.1 million. The net cash
proceeds of approximately $2.7 million were held in escrow and were used to complete a tax deferred
exchange under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code on the Parkway Centre III acquisition on
September 10, 2004. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the Company has classified the operations of
these properties as discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.
The following is a summary of the operating results of these properties:

Years Ended December 31,‘

. ‘ 2004 2003 2002

Rental revenue . . . .. L - $272,003  $1,071,845 . $1,091,992
Property operating expenses—. ‘

Operating expenses . ............. I ~ 90,476 435,512 367,882

~ Real estate taxes ..... e [ © 16,373 81,758 79,692 .

Interestexpense . .......... ..., 24,125 120,517 127,774
Depreciation and amortization expense . ... ... 27,570 131,716 129,249
- ) | R 158,544 769,503 704,597
Gainonsale .......... e .. 574276 — —

Netincome ...........0. ..o, » $687,735 § 302,342 $ 387,395
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NOTE 5—VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITY

Effective March 31, 2004, the Company adopted FIN 46R and applied it to its investment in
Panorama Falls. The Company owns 20% of Panorama Falls as a tenant-in-common with the majority
investor. The Panorama Falls property is located in Englewood, Colorado. The building has a carrying
value of $6.6 million. The Company financed the property through its Unsecured Facility. Panorama
Falls is deemed to be a variable interest entity {(VIE) as defined by FIN 46R. In accordance with
FIN 46R, the Company determined it is subject to the majority of the variability in the variable
interests in the entity and has consolidated the assets and liabilities of Panorama Falls effective
March 31, 2004. With respect to the consolidated statements of operations, the investment was
accounted for under the consolidation method of accounting beginning April 1, 2004 and under the
equity method of accounting for prior periods. The following table details the asset and liability
amounts related to Panorama Falls property at December 31, 2004:

Assets
Investment in real estate
Land ... .. e $ 1,051,372
Buildings and improvements . ........ ... 0 oo e e 5,426,691
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ........................ 29,426
Tenant IMPIOVEMENtS .. .o vttt e it e e ee e 973,184
Tenant leasing COMMISSIONS . . . ..o v vt inn et iaiannn ., 210,835
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization ............. (1,072,109)
Net investment inrealestate. . ... ... .o vt enn. $ 6,619,399
Cash and cash equivalents. . ........... .. nns. 84,718
Accounts receivable . ... ... e e e e 2,974
Deferred rents receivable . ... ... .. . e 127,380
Deferred financing costs, net. . . .......... . i o 18,829
TOtal @SSELS . v v v it e e $ 6,853,300
Liabilities .
Mortgage loans and notes payable . . ........... ... .. oL $ 4,214,408
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . . ..., .. i, 15,835
Accrued real estate taxes . . ... .t e e 144,696
Prepaid rents, deferred revenue and security deposits . ... ... ... .. 87,284
Total Habilities . . ... ... ittt i i i e e $ 4,462,223
MINOTItY iNtETES . . . v vt ettt et e et e $ 1,580,057

NOTE 6—MORTGAGE LOANS, NOTES PAYABLE, AND LINES OF CREDIT

The Company finances its properties with mortgage loans and other debt instruments available,
such as lines of credit. See above under Note 3—Acquisitions and Developments for property specific
financing activity. The following is a summary of the Company’s outstanding mortgage loans, notes
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payable and lines of credit, classified by interest type (fixed or variable) and in order of maturity, at
December 31, 2004 and 2003: :

2004 2003
: " Mortgaged Property at Maturity  Principal Interest Principal Interest
Lender ' . December 31, 2004 ., Date Balance Rate(1) Balance Rate(1)
Fixed Rate ” ‘
Teachers Insurance and. Annulty . . .

Association of America . . . ...... AmeriVest Plaza at Inverness  1/10/2006 $ 14,412,347  7.90% $ 14,572,888  7.90%
GEMSA. . ... i Lo Hampton Court 11/1/2007 7,900,000  5.48% — —
Greenwich Capital Financial Products . Parkway Centre 11 10/1/2008 38,115,018 5.13% 38,876,849 5.13%

L . Centerra. ‘
Southwest Gas Building
Metropolitan Life Insurance . ... ... " Parkway Centre III - 9/10/2009 15,154,645 4.47% — —
Alistate Life Insurance Company . . . . Financial Plaza - .. 10/5/2010 24,173,324 5.25% 24,669,760  5.25%
Southern Farm Bureau Life Insurance

Company...........c..oo... Scottsdale Norte 4/1/2011 6,568,596 7.90%  6,625460 7.90%
JPMorgan Chase . . . ........... Hackberry View—1* 9/1/2012 11,424,345 6.57% —_ _—
JPMorgan Chase . . . ........... Hackberry View—24(2) 9/1/2012 967,654  8.00% — —
Teachers Insurance and Annuity

Association of America . . ....... Sheridan Center 1/1/2013 28,852,678 7.40% 29,309,686  7.40%

Arrowhead Fountains
Kellogg Building . ‘
Allstate Life Insurance . . . .. ... ... ~ Camelback Lakes—1* 9/5/2014 15928449  582% — —
Allstate Life Insurance. .. ........ Camelback Lakes—2™ 9/5/2014 4977,640 5.82% — —
Security Life of Denver Insurance

Company..............uunn Keystone Office Park—1* 5/1/2022 4,236,333  8.00% 4,334,828 8.00%
Security Life of Denver Insurance

Company......i........... Keystone Office Park—2™ 5/1/2022 474284  8.63% 485,638  8.63%
Transatlantic Capital ,

Company, LLC(3) . ........... Texas State Buildings 8/1/2028 5,579,891  7.66% 5,660,436  7.66%

Subtotal $178,765,204  6.14% $124,535,545  6.39%

Variable Rate
KeyBank National Assomanon—
$42 million Senior Secured Line of
Credit(4) . . . ...... .o Chateau Plaza 11/12/2005 $ 32,900,000 4.96% $ 18,470,020 3.90%
Greenhill Park
KeyBank National Association—
$40 million Unsecured Line of
Credit(4) . .. ........ ..., Unsecured 11/12/2007 24,857,063  5.63% 15,149,725  517%

Subtotal § 57,757,063  5.25% $ 33,619,745 4.47%

Other Notes Payabie
Lease Capital Corporation . .. ..... Phone system 10/31/2007 $ 64,124 11.11% $ 82371 11.11%

Liabilities—Held for Sale . ]
Jefferson Pilot . . . . . T Texas Bank Buildings N/A — — 1,296,049  9.00%

Total $236,586,391  5.92% $159,533,710 6.01%

(1) Interest only, does not include amortization of deferred financing costs or any fees.

(2) The amount recorded reflects 4 net present value calculation based on a fair market value rate of 8%. The actua.l loan
balance assumed was $697,847 at an, interest rate of 15%.

(3} On March 2, 2005, the Company completed a Deed-in-Lieu Agreement to return these properties to the lender.

(4) The Secured Facility and Unsecured Facility were assumed by KeyBank National Association from Fleet National Bank in
October 2004, See “Lines of Credit” and Note 15 below.
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Refinancings

In August 2004, the Company refinanced its Camelback Lakes property in Phoenix, Arizona. The
$21.0 million of indebtedness consists of a $16.0 million mortgage with Allstate Life Insurance
Company and a $5.0 million mortgage with Allstate Life Insurance Company of New York. The
proceeds were used to repay the Secured Facility. This loan allowed the Company to fix the interest
rate on a portion of variable rate debt.

In September 2003, the Company borrowed $39.0 million from Greenwich Capital Financial
Products (see terms above). The proceeds were used to repay (i) a portion of the Secured Facility that
was secured by Centerra and the Southwest Gas Building, respectively and (ii) a loan from J.P. Morgan
Chase secured by Parkway Centre II. This loan allowed the Company to fix the interest rate on a large
portion of variable rate debt.

Lines of Credit

In November 2002, the Company obtained a senior secured revolving line of credit from Fleet
National Bank (Fleet). The original available amount under this facility was $30.0 million, which was
increased to $42.0 million in February 2003 and was assumed by KeyBank (Secured Facility) in
October 2004, The Secured Facility has an interest rate of LIBOR plus 275 basis points and is currently
secured by Chateau Plaza and Greenhill Park. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2004 is
$32.9 million, with $9.1 million of availability.

In February 2003, the Company obtained a $5.1 million short-term loan from Fleet that was used
for the acquisition of the Southwest Gas Building. In August 2003, the Company refinanced this loan
with a $15.0 million unsecured revolving line of credit from Fleet, which was increased to $30.0 million
in December 2003. In October 2004, KeyBank assumed the Company’s unsecured facility from Fleet
(Unsecured Facility). All references to the Secured Facility or Unsecured Facility prior to this date
pertain to the previous agreement with Fleet. At December 31, 2004, the amended facility had a
capacity of $40.0 million and a maturity date of November 12, 2007. In addition, the Unsecured Facility
had the option of a one-time increase to $50.0 million available until December 31, 2005. The amended
facility had an interest rate of LIBOR plus 350 basis points or the Prime rate plus 275 basis points. The
Company paid a one-time commitment fee in October 2004 of $800,000. The fee was capitalized and is
being amortized into interest expense over the life of the loan agreement. In addition, the Company
recognized $151,000 of expense related to the write-off of loan costs associated with the previous
unsecured facility with Fleet. The Unsecured Facility had an outstanding balance of $24.9 million at
December 31, 2004.

Certain of its mortgage lenders require the Company to comply with certain debt covenants as
described in the specific loan documents, including the loan-to-value ratio, the interest coverage ratio,
the fixed charge coverage ratio and the dividend payout ratio. At December 31, 2004, the Company was
in compliance with all of its debt covenants with the exception of leverage, interest coverage and fixed
charge coverage covenants as required by the Secured Facility. The Company received a waiver from
KeyBank for this event of non-compliance with this covenant for the year ended December 31, 2004.
See Note 15 for an update on the Secured and Unsecured Facilities.
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Other Information
The following table details the scheduled maturities of debt outstanding at December 31, 2004:

2005(1) ..o e $ 36,061,458
2006 . . e e e e e e e e e 17,416,022
2007(1) < v e e e 36,125,664
2008 . e e e e e e e e 38,166,576
2000 . i e e 15,644,670
Thereafter. . ....... O 93,172,001
Total . .......... e e e e e e e e e $236,586,391

(1) See Note 15 for information on the amendments to the Secured and Unsecured Facilities.

The change in debt, including assets held for sale, during 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following:

‘ 2004 2003
Balance at January 1 ,......... e $159,533,710  $106,094,232
Additions ......... e ... 140,730,210 142,425,150
Repayments. . . . . PO (61,268,264)  (87,952,048)
Scheduled principal payments . . . .............. (2,409,265)  (1,033,624)
Balance at December 31 ...................... $236,586,391  $159,533,710

‘Certain of its mortgage lenders require the Company to escrow funds to be used for the payment
of future real estate taxes, property insurance, tenant improvements, leasing commissions and other
capital expenditures. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, these amounts totaled $7.7 million and
$5.8 million, respectively, and are classified as escrow deposits on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. : : ‘ ‘

NOTE 7—-SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common Stock

Our Articles of Incorporation authorize us to issue 75,000,000 shares of capital stock with a par
value of $0.001 per share. Our Articles of Incorporation allow us to issue shares of common stock or
preferred stock, as the Board may create and authorize from time to time. The Board may classify or
reclassify any unissued shares from time to time by setting or changing the preferences, conversion
rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitations as to distributions, qualifications of terms or conditions of
redemption.

Dividend Reinvestment dnd 'Shar,e Purchase Plan

Our Dividend Reinvestment was designed and implemented to increase ownership in the Company
by private investors. Under the plan, shareholders have the ability to automatically reinvest their cash
dividends to purchase additional shares of common stock.
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Ownership Restrictions and Significant Shareholders

Our governing documents restrict beneficial ownership of our outstanding shares of stock by a
single person, or persons acting as a group, to 9.9% of the common stock. For us to qualify as a REIT
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, not more than 50% in value of our outstanding
capital stock may be owned by five or fewer individuals at any time during the last half of our taxable
year. The provision permits five persons to acquire up to a maximum of 9.9% each of the shares of
common stock, or an aggregate of 49% of the outstanding shares of common stock.

Common stock owned by a person or group of persons in excess of the 9.9% limit are subject to
redemption. The provision does not apply where a majority of the Board, in its sole and absolite
discretion, waives such limit after determining that our eligibility to qualify as a REIT for federal
income tax purposes will not be jeopardized or the disqualification as a REIT is advantageous to
shareholders.

Distributions
Distributions were declared and paid quarterly to holders of shares of common stock as of the
record dates of each declaration. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the per share

distributions were $.52, $.52 and $.51, respectively. See Note 15, for information on the suspension of
the dividend in March 2005.

Stock Offerings

During March 2004, the Company completed an offering of 6,325,000 shares of common stock,
including 825,000 shares to cover over-allotments, at a price of $6.75 per share. The Company received
approximately $39.9 million, net of underwriting commissions and expenses. The proceeds were used to
repay the outstanding balance on the Unsecured Facility and a portion of the outstanding balance on
the Secured Facility. The Company intends to use available amounts under these facilities to fund
future property acquisitions.

During June 2003, the Company offered 5,750,000 shares of common stock, including 750,000
shares to cover over-allotments, at a price of §6.20 per share. The Company received approximately
$33.3 million, net of underwriting commissions and expenses. The proceeds were used to repay a
portion of the outstanding balance on the Secured Fleet Facility, for capital improvements and as
working capital.

During May and June 2002, the Company offered 4,140,000 shares of common stock, including
540,000 shares to cover over-allotments, at a price of $6.05 per share. The Company received
$22.7 million, net of the underwriting commissions and offering expenses. The proceeds were used to
acquire additional properties, for capital improvements and for general corporate purposes.
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NOTE 8—FUTURE MINIMUM RENTS

-The following table summarizes future minimum base rent to be received under non-cancelable
tenant leases for the Company’s'commercial properties expiring each year, at December 31, 2004
(excludes Texas State Buildings, see Note 15):

2005 ....... P S S $ 40,052,000

2006 . ... e e 30,717,000
2007 ... ... [ P ... 23,493,000
2008 ..t e 16,506,000 .
2009 ... A T i ~.. 10,989,000 .
Thereafter. ... .......... e 8,965,000
TOtAl L o o o e e e $130,722,000

Some leases also provide for additional rent based on increases in operating expenses. These
increases are generally payable annually in the succeeding year. The table above does not mclude any
expense recoveries.

.- For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, there were no tenants who accounted for
greater than 10% of revenues,

NOTE 9—IMPAIRMENT OF INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE

The $1.2 million impairment recorded during the twelve months ended December 31, 2004 relates
to certain of the Texas State Buildings located in Lubbock, El Paso, Temple, Bellville, Columbus,
Hempstead, Mission, Arlington, Marshall, and-Amarillo, Texas. The Company had previously recorded
a $1.5 million impairment charge to the remaining two assets in Clint and Paris, Texas in 2003, and a
$275,000 impairment charge to'the Clint property. in 2002. Impairment charges recorded on the Texas
State Building portfolio reduced the total net book value to the properties’ total estimated fair value of
$5.2 million, excludmg certain deposits maintained by the lender. The Company calculated the
estimated fair value using a probab1l1ty—we1ghted forecasted cash flows. Subsequent to year-end, the
Company entered 1nto negotiations with the lender to return the properties in lieu of the debt balance
This transact1on was completed in March 2005 (see Note 15).

NOTE 10—EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company p'roulde"s for gtants:of ‘1ncent1ve and non- Quallﬁed stock options, stock appreciation
rights, bonus stock, stock units, performance shares; performance units, restricted stock and restricted
stock units to certaln employees and off1cers of the Company.

Restricted stock awards are granted at the market price on the date of grant and generally vest
over a five year period. The Company recognizes the value of restricted stock as compensation expense
based on the Company’s closing stock price on the AMEX on the date of grant on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period. As of December 31, 2004, there are 92,800 restricted shares outstanding. The
Company recognized $327,164, $261,518 and $60,241 of compensation expense in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, for the portion of these shares that vested during each year.

F-20




AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Stock options are granted at an exercise price equal to 100% of the market price of the Company’s
stock on the date of grant, generally vest pro-rata over three to five years and expire 10 years from the
date of grant. As of December. 31, 2004 there are 127,000 options outstanding.

401(k) Plan

In 2002, the Company established a 401(k) plan and a nonqualified savings plan, both of which
became effective on January 1, 2002. The 401(k) plan provides for matching employer contributions of
fifty cents for every dollar contributed by the employee, up to 6% of the employees’ annual
contribution. Contributions by employees to the 401(k) plan are subject to federal limitations of
$12,000 during 2004. The matching employer contributions are made in common shares, which vest
between years of service at 20% per year.

Deferred. Compensation Plan

In September 2004, the Board of Directors approved a deferred compensation plan, whereby
Directors and designated executives of the Company may defer all of a portion of the cash
compensation and/or grants of cornmon stock. If a participant elects to have their fees deferred, the
fees accrue in the form of phantom shares equal to the number of AmeriVest common shares that
could have been purchased on the date the fee was credited. Dividends are calculated on the phantom
shares and additional phantom shares are credited, if applicable. Payment of the deferred compensation
account may only be made after either the individual has been terminated, or there has been a change
in control of the Company. Payment will be made in a single lump sum payment in shares of the
Company’s stock in an amount equal to the number of phantom shares in the individual’s account, less
an applicable tax or other withholding. At December 31, 2004, there were no amounts deferred under
this plan. -

2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the LTIP) as
a means to compensate employees and directors with equity-based compensation. The LTIP provides
for the grant of up to 500,000 shares of common stock in the form of non-qualified and incentive stock
options, stock appreciation rights, bonus stock, stock units, performance shares, performance units,
restricted stock and restricted stock units.

During 2004, the Company issued a total of 14,182 shares of bonus stock to directors and an
employee under the LTIP.

During 2003, 58,000 shares of restricted common stock were granted to each of William T. Atkins,
the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, and Charles K. Knight, the Chief Operating Officer and
President, under the LTIP, and such shares vest over a five-year period.

1995 and 1998 Stock Option Plans

Pursuant to the Company’s 1995 and 1998 Stock Option Plans (collectively, the 95-98 Option
Plans), the Company may grant options to purchase an aggregate of 330,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock to key employees, directors, and other persons who have or are contributing to the
success of the Company. The options granted pursuant to the 95-98 Option Plans may be incentive
options qualifying for beneficial tax treatment for the recipient, non-qualified options or non-qualified,
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non-discretionary options. Directors who are not employees of the Company (Outside. Directors) -
automatically receive options to purchase 12,000 shares pursuant to the 95-98 Option Plans at the time
of their election. None of these options are. exercisable ‘at the time of grant. One-third of these options
become exercisable on December 30 of each of the first three years immediately following the date of
grant. The exercise price for options granted to Outside Directors is the fair market value of the
common stock on the date of grant, and all options granted to Outside Directors expire five years from
the date of grant. On the date that all of an Outside Director’s options become exercisable, options to
purchase an additional 12, 000 shares none of Wthh are exercisable at that time, shall be granted to
that Outs1de Dlrector o

The status of outstanding options grantéd pursuant to the Company’s Option Plans was as follows:

Weighted-
Number of  Number of Average Weighted- Range of
Options Options Exercise Average Exercise
‘ Outstanding  Exercisable Price Fair Value Prices
December 31,2001 ... ......... 214,000 © 164,000  $4.74 $3.97-5.70
Granted at fair value ......... 24,000 - $6.22 $0.58 $6.22
Exercised . .. .....oiiiiiiil (60,000) $4.51 $4.38-4.81
~ Forfeited . ... .. PR (20,0000 ~  $4.90 $4.75-5.00
December 31, 2002 ... ... e 158,000 112,000.  $5.04 $3.97-6.22
Granted at fair value . ........ 83,000- "~ $6.60 $0.69 - $6.16-7.10
Exercised . . ........ SR (33,247) $4.90 $3.97-6.16
December 31,2003 ........... 207,753 147,753  $5.24 $4.13-7.10
Granted at fair value ......... 12,000 $696  $0.74 - $6.96
Exercised . ................. (92,753) $5.14 $4.75-6.16
December 31,2004 . .......... 127,000 83,000 $6.20 ‘ $4.13-7.10

The weightéd average reniaining contractual life of optioné outstanding‘ét December 31, 2004 was
approximately 3 years.

At December 31, 2004, there were no options available for grant pursuant to the 95-98 Option
Plans. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, options to purchase 12,000 and 95,000 shares, respectively,
were available for grant pursuant to the 95-98 Option Plans.

Warrants

At December 31, 2004 the status of exercisable warrants is as follows:

Issue Date j " Exercisable  Exercise Price Expiration Date

July 2000 ... ... e [T 54,795 $5.00 July 2005
i 50,000 $7.00 July 2005




AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

NOTE 11—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Ground Lease

On October 25, 2004, the Company acquired the 5.2 acres of land underlying its Greenhill Park
office property in Addison, Texas for $14.5 million in cash drawn from the Company’s line of credit.
The Greenhill Park building, purchased by the Company in December 2003, was subject to a ground
lease with 80 years remaining on the term. The lease required the Company to make monthly rental
payments based on the value of the land that was re-established every ten years. During 2004, the
Company incurred $470,000 in ground lease expense prior to the acquisition, which is included in
“Operating expenses” on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Legal Claims

From time to time, the Company and/or its subsidiaries may become involved in litigation relating
to claims arising out of its operations in the normal course of business. The following is a discussion of
outstanding legal claims against the Company and by the Company:

On June 14, 2001, a lawsuit was filed in the District Court, Hidalgo County, Texas against
Innerarity Austin, Inc., a Nevada corporation, and the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, AmeriVest
Properties Texas, Inc., by Laura Smith alleging that the defendants were negligent and breached various
duties in allowing the Company’s Mission, Texas building to be contaminated with airborne
contaminants while leasing the premises to the plaintiff’s employer, the Texas Department of Human
Services. Innerarity Austin, Inc. was the previous owner of the property. The plaintiff alleges that due
to the acts and omissions of the defendants, she has suffered serious and some permanent injuries and
severe physical and mental pain. The plaintiff seeks monetary and other relief, including exemplary
damages, in excess of $50,000, and pre-judgment and post-judgment interest as provided by law, costs
of the lawsuit and such other relief to which the plaintiff may be justly entitled. We have been advised
that this lawsuit has now been settled with our insurance carrier; however, the terms of that settlement
are not known as of the date of this report.

On February 11, 2002, a lawsuit was filed in the District Court, Hidalgo County, Texas against the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, AmeriVest Properties Texas, Inc., and Woodhaven Management
Corporation, the Company’s external property manager, by Irma and Yreneo Carranza alleging that the
defendants were negligent in maintaining the Company’s Mission, Texas building while leasing the
premises to the plaintiff’s employer, the Texas Department of Human Services. The plaintiff alleges
that due to the acts and omissions of the defendants, she has suffered serious and some permanent
injuries and severe physical and mental pain, including loss of consortium. The plaintiff seeks monetary
and other relief, including exemplary damages, and pre-judgment and post-judgment interest as
provided by law, costs of the lawsuit and such other relief to which the plaintiff may be justly entitled.

The Company has asserted a general denial of the material allegations in all lawsuits and the
Company’s insurance companies are defending the Company in these lawsuits and are responsible for
all costs. The Company believes that these lawsuits will not be adversely determined and will not have
any material adverse effect on the Company’s business and financial condition.

We are party to various other claims and routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business. We do not believe that the results of any such claims and litigation individually will have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial position or results of operations.
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NOTE 12—SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

Selected quarterly financial data for 2004 and 2003 is summarized below.

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Year-Ended
. March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 December 31
2004: . ’ :
Rental revenues. .:.......... $ 9,593,805 $11,402,649 $11,435,128 $12,643,553 $45,075,225
Total operating expenses . ..... - 10,653,928 12,022,248 12,870,255 16,444,667 51,991,098
Loss from continuing operations . (1,060,033) (619,599) (1,435,127) (3,801,114) (6,915,873)
Total other income/(loss) . ... .. (2,713) 72,011 133,233 122,655 325,186
Loss before discontinued ‘
operations ............... (1,062,746) (547,588) (1,301,894) (3,678,459) (6,590,687)
Discontinued operations.. . . . . . 687,735 L — — — 687,735
Netloss ....... D $ (375,011) $ (547,588) $(1,301,894) $(3,678,459) $(5,902,952)
Net loss per share—basic and ,
diluted......... e '$ (0.02) § (0.02) $ (0.05) $ (0.15) $ (0.26)
2003: T )
Rental revenues. . ........... $6,548,627 $ 6,680,723 $ 6,895,235 ' § 8,669,240 $28,793,825
Total operating expenses ...... 6,224,901 7,861,924 7,003,734 10,004,545 31,095,104
Income/(loss) from contmumg o ‘
operations ............... 323,726 (1,181,201) (108,499) (1,335,305) (2,301,279)
Total other income/(loss) ...... ' (4,785) (1,376) 28,897 (4,219) 18,517
Income/(loss) before : -
discontinued operations . .. .. -~ 318941 (1,182,577) (79,602) (1,339,524) (2,282,762)
Discontinued operations . . . . . . 86,023 - 72,526 56,134 87,659 302,342
. Net income/(loss). .. ......... $ 404964 $(1,110,051) $ (23,468) $(1,251,865) $(1,980,420)
Net gain/(loss) per share—basic

and diluted .............. $ 004 § . (009 $ 000 § (007) $  (0.13)

NOTE 13—INCOME TAXES

. Effective January 1, 1996, the Company elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through
860 of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code), as amended. As a REIT, the Company generally would
not be subject to federal income taxation at the corporate level to the extent it distributes annually at
least 100% of its REIT taxable income, as defined in the Code, to its stockholders and satisfies certain
other requirements. Accordingly, no provision has been made for federal income taxes in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2004, the Company has satisfied
the requirements as defined in the Code.

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries are subject to certain state excise and franchise taxes. The
provision for such state taxes has been reflected in general and administrative expense in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operatlons and has not been separately stated due to its
insignificance. - »
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The following is a reconciliation of GAAP net loss to taxable income for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002:

2004 2003 2002
(estimated)

GAAP net1oss ..o, $(5,902,952) $(1,980,420) $ (157,274)
Book to tax differences:
Depreciation and amortization . ................ 6,393,469 3,019,724 864,220
Gains and losses from capital transactions . . ....... 100,763 — —
Straight-line rent adjustment. . . . ............... (1,995,704) (729,718)  (297,345)
Capitalized operating expenses . . ............... — — 1,367,380
Assetimpairment. .. .......... .. .00l 1,160,000 1,465,932 275,000
Compensation eXpense . . .. .......veereee. ... (149,347) (436,641) (67,788)
Other,net . ........ ... ... i, 495,749 79,733 (49,683)
Total book to tax differences .................. 6,004,930 3,399,030 2,091,784
Adjusted taxable income subject to distribution

TEQUITEMENE . . . o oottt ettt $ 101,978 §$ 1,418,610 $1,934,510

The following table summarizes the taxability of our dividends for the past three years:

2004 2003 2002

Ordinary inCome . . . .....vtirin ettt E% 36% 56%
Returnof capital .. ... ... ..o 88% 64% 44%

100% 100% 100%

NOTE 14—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Consulting Agreement

Effective January 1, 2004, Alexander S. Hewitt, Director and Vice Chairman, serves as a consultant
to the Company. His services may include consulting with and advising officers of the Company on
product development, property design and quality control, and providing assistance in maintaining
relationships with stockholders, potential investors, financial advisors, customers and suppliers of the
Company. The services as a consultant shall be coordinated with and accomplished in conjunction with
the officers of the Company. The Chief Executive Officer, William T. Atkins, may also request
Mr. Hewitt to undertake reasonable consulting and managerial assignments on behalf of the Company.
Mr. Hewitt receives $36,000 per year plus certain health insurance benefits for his services.

Sheridan Realty Advisors, LLC (SRA)

Effective January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2001, all of the Company’s properties were
managed under a Property Management and Advisory Agreement (as amended and restated on
March 12, 2001 and December 31, 2001, the Agreement) with SRA, which also managed the day-to-day
operations of the Company and assisted and advised the Board of Directors on real estate acquisitions
and investment opportunities. SRA is owned by our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, William T
Atkins, and Alexander S. Hewitt, Director and Vice Chairman. Effective January 1, 2002, the Company
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acquired the administrative and property management and accounting services business of SRA for
approximately $50,000, which resulted in the Company employing most of SRA’s employees and the
elimination of the related fees. Furthermore, effective November 1, 2002, the Company terminated the
Agreement in accordance with the Termination of Advisory Agreement entered into on December 27,
2002. Due to the amendment of the Agreement effective January 1, 2002 whereby certain SRA
employees became employees of the' Company, the advisory and capital project fees were expensed in
2002. Prior to January 1, 2002, these fees were capitalized. Addmonally, due to the termination of the
Advisory Agreement effective November 1, 2002 whereby all remaining SRA employees became
employees of the Company, these fees have been eliminated. Beginning on November 1, 2002, the
salaries of these additional employees are included in general and administrative expenses.

In accordance with the Agreement, SRA received an administrative fee, a property management
and accounting fee, an advisory fee -and a capital project fee for these services. The property
management fee was calculated as 5% of gross collected rents, the advisory fee was calculated as 5% of
capital deployed for real property acquisitions and the capital project fee was calculated as 3% of the
total cost of capital projects in excess of $100,000. The Advisory Fee for the year ended December 31,
2002 was $1.4 m11110n

NOTE 15—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Amendment to Secured‘ and Unsecured Facilities

On March 15, 2005, the Company. amended its Secured Facility and Unsecured Facility with
KeyBank due to the Company not being in compliance with its leverage, interest coverage and fixed
charge coverage covenants required by the Secured Facility. The amendment to the Secured Facility
involved: (i) a waiver for the events of non-compliance, noted above, as of December 31, 2004,

(ii) changes to the debt covenant calculations to set them at the same levels as those previously
established for the Unsecured Facility, (iii) mandatory repayments of at least $2.5 million by July 1,
2005 and at least $10.0 million by September 1, 2005, (iv) removal of the revolvmg feature of the
Secured Facility, and (v) the elimination of the obligation of the lender to make any further loans
under the Secured Facility. The amendment to the Unsecured Facility involved: (i) a waiver for the
events of non-compliance as ‘of December 31, 2004 due to cross default provisions with the Secured
Facility (ii) moving up the maturity date from November 12, 2007 to April 1, 2006, (iii) mandatory
repayments of at least $5.0 million by September 2005 and at least $10.0 million by January 2006,

(iv) removal of the revolving feature of the Unsecured Facility, (v) a requirement that any further
borrowings, including borrowings to"pay dividends, be subject to the approval of the lender in its sole
and absolute discretion, (vi) a limitation on the incurrence of any other indebtedness by the Company
without the prior, written consent of the lender and (vii) a requirement that all net proceeds from a
property sale, refinancing or other capital transaction be used to pay down any amounts outstanding.

As a result of the amendments to the Secured and Unsecured Facilities, the Company believes that
it will be able to comply with the revised covenants based on the 2005 budgeted results of operations.
In addition, the Company believes it will meet its obligations under the mandatory repayments on the
Secured and Unsecured Facilities by  either: (i) completing a strategic transaction, which may include a
sale or recapitalization of all or a portion of the Company’s assets or a merger of the Company;

(ii) obtaining additional ﬁnanc%mg by refinancing certain assets, or (iii) issuing equity. If the Company is
unable to raise sufficient capital for the mandatory repayments, or if we are unable to remain in
compliance with our debt covenants, the bank could accelerate and demand repayment of outstanding
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amounts based on the terms of the amended facilities agreements. If this were to occur, the Company
may not be able to meet its obligations under the accelerated repayment obligations.

Suspension of Dividend

On March 9, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors suspended the payment of the common
dividend for the first quarter of 2005. The Board determined that suspension of the dividend will
maximize the Company’s ability to complete a strategic transaction in a timely manner. The Board
intends to review and consider the resumption of a dividend for the second quarter of 2005, or
thereafter, based on a number of factors, including the completion of a strategic transaction or other
significant capital event, such as refinancing or asset sales, the Company’s financial results, capital
resources and liquidity needs at that time.

Disposition of Texas State Buildings

On March 2, 2005, the Company completed a Deed-In-Lieu Agreement to return the 13 non-core
Texas State Buildings to the lender. The properties were leased primarily to various agencies of the
State of Texas and were located in Temple, Clint, El Paso, Hempstead, Lubbock, Marshall, Columbus,
Paris, Mission, Arlington, Bellville and Amarillo Texas. The buildings secured a loan in the amount of
$5.6 million, bearing interest at 7.66% through August 1, 2028 and had a net book value of $5.2 million
(excluding certain deposits maintained by the lender), subsequent to an impairment charge of
$1.2 million recognized during the fourth quarter of 2004. The following are the amounts associated
with the Texas State Buildings for, and as of, the year ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

2004 2003 2002
REVENUE . . .t v v ittt i i eeiiee e $1,553,006 $1,576,579 $1,775,171
Property operating expenses . ............ 1,031,971 963,398 902,396
$ 521,035 $ 613,181 § 872,775
Total assets . . . ... vt $5,935,375 $7,537,766  $9,044,005

Legal Settlement

During the first quarter of 2005, the Company settled a lawsuit against a property inspection firm
regarding a pre-acquisition inspection of our Sheridan Center property. This action was settled for
$450,000 which was recorded as a reduction in book value of that asset.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Supplementary Information

The Board of Directors
AmeriVest Properties Inc.:

We have audited and reported separately herein on the consolidated balance sheets of AmeriVest
Properties Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2004.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of AmeriVest Properties Inc. and subsidiaries taken as a whole. The supplementary
information included in Schedules III is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion,
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole.

/s/f KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 16, 2005
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Operating Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

The following is a reconciliation of the carrying amount and related accumulated depreciation of

AmeriVest’s investment in real estate, at cost (in thousands):

Real Estate:

Balance at January 1(1) ....... 00 . ... .. e

Additions:
Acquisitions ......... P
Additions to and improvements of real estate . . .
Consolidation of Panorama Falls JV ... .......

Deductions:
Dispositions ............. e
Impairments . .. ........ .. . ...,
Write-offs of fully depreciated assets .........

Balance at December 31, . P

Accumulated Depreciation:

Balance at January 1(1) ............ ... .....
Depreciationexpense . ..............0u...
Accumulated deprecation on real estate ;

dispositions . ....... e e
Write-offs of fully depreciated assets .........
Consolidation of Panorama Falls JV..........

Balancea;December31v..1....,.........;....

(1) Includes assets held for sale.
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Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

$236,701 $151,371 $ 83,906

103,287 78,820 62,706
15,404 8,578 5,072
7,692

(3,867) — —
(1,160)  (1,466) (275)
(860)  (602) (38)

$357,197 $236,701 $151,371

$ 12806 $ 6,384 $ 3,05
14,415 7,024 3,363

(700)
(860)  (602) (38)
722

$ 26,383 $ 12,806 $ 6,384
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 16, 2005

AMERIVEST PROPERTIES INC.

By: /s/ WILLIAM T. ATKINS

William T. Atkins, Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this rej:ort has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s/ WILLIAM T. ATKINS

William T. Atkins

/s/ CHARLES K. KNIGHT

Charles K. Knight

/s/ KATHRYN L. HALE

Kathryn L. Hale

/s/ PATRICE DERRINGTON

Patrice Defrington

/s/{ HARRY P. GELLES

Harry P. Gelles

/s/ ALEXANDER S. HEWITT

Alexander S. Hewitt

/s/ ROBERT W. HOLMAN, JR.

Robert W. Holman, Jr.

/s/ JOHN A. LABATE

John A. Labate

/s/ JERRY J. TEPPER

Jerry J. Tepper

Title

Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer) and Chairman
of the Board

Chief Operating Officer, President
and Director -

- Chief Financial Officer (Principal

Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer) and Secretary

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

March 16, 2005

March 16, 2005

March 16, 2005

March 16, 2005

March 16, 2005

March 16, 2005

March 16, 2005

March 16, 2005

March 16, 2005




Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

3.1A

3.1B

32A

3.2B

3.3B

4.1

10.1

102

10.3

104A

10.4B

10.4C

Form of Agreement and Plan of Merger of AmeriVest and AMVP Inc. (to reincorporate in
Maryland). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of AmeriVest’s Definitive Proxy Statement
concerning AmeriVest’s June 29, 1999 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed with the SEC on
May 27, 1999.

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Articles of Incorporation. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of AmeriVest’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2/A filed with the
SEC on May 29, 2003 (Registration No. 333-105183.

Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1B of AmeriVest’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the
SEC on August 9, 2004.

Amended and Restated Bylaws as amended and restated as of April 16, 2002. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of AmeriVest’s Registration Statement cn Form SB-2 filed with
the SEC on April 19, 2003 (Registration No. 333-86676).

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws dated May 20, 2003. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2B of AmeriVest’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2/A filed with
the SEC on May 29, 2003 (Registration No. 333-105183).

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws dated September 10, 2004.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of AmeriVest’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on September 15, 2004.

Specimen Common Stock Certificate. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1(a) of
AmeriVest’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed with the SEC on June 21, 1996
(Registration No. 333-5114-D).

1995 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of AmeriVest’s Annual
Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 1997 filed with the SEC on March
30, 1998.

1998 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to AmeriVest’s Definitive Proxy Statement
concerning AmeriVest’s May 21, 1998 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed with the SEC on
March 30, 1998.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Incorporated by reference to AmeriVest’s Registration
Statement on Form S-3 filed with the SEC on August 21, 2000 (Registration No. 333-44210).

Revolving Credit Agreement among AmeriVest Properties Inc. and Fleet National Bank, as

administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto, dated November 12, 2002. Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of AmeriVest’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC
on December 30, 2002.

Revolving Credit Note by AmeriVest Properties Inc. to Fleet National Bank, as agent, dated
November 12, 2002. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of AmeriVest’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 30, 2002.

First Amendment to Revolving Credit Agreement between AmeriVest Properties Inc. and
Fleet National Bank, as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto, dated February 6,
2003. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of AmeriVest’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on February 21, 2003.
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Number

Description

10.4D

10.5A

10.5B

10.5C

10.5D

10.8A

10.8B

10.9A

10.9B

10.10

10.11

10.12A

10.12B

10.12C

Second Amendment to Revolving Credit Agreement between AmeriVest Properties Inc. and
Fleet National Bank, as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto, dated March 16,
2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of AmeriVest’s Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 10, 2004.

Cross-Collateralization and Cross-Default Agreement among AmeriVest Properties Inc.,
AmeriVest Sheridan Center Inc., AmeriVest Kellogg Inc. and AmeriVest Arrowhead Inc. and
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America dated December 23, 2002.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21A of AmeriVest’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB
for the year ended December 31, 2002 filed with the SEC on March 31, 2003.

Promissory Note by AmeriVest Arrowhead Inc. to Teachers Insurance and Annuity
Association of America dated December 23, 2002. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.21B of AmeriVest’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended
December 31, 2002 filed with the SEC on March 31, 2003.

Promissory Note by AmeriVest Kellogg Inc. to Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of
America dated December 23, 2002. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21C of
AmeriVest’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2002 filed
with the SEC on March }1, 2003.

Promissory Note by AmeriVest Sheridan Center Inc. to Teachers Insurance and Annuity
Association of America dated December 23, 2002. Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.21D of AmeriVest’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended
December 31, 2002 filed with the SEC on March 31, 2003.

Deed of Trust between AmeriVest Mesa Inc. and Allstate Life Insurance Company dated
September 8, 2003. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of AmeriVest’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 7, 2003.

Mortgage Note by AmeriVest Mesa Inc. to Allstate Life Insurance Company dated
September 8, 2003. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of AmeriVest’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 7, 2003.

Loan Agreement between AmeriVest Centerra Inc., AmeriVest Parkway Inc., and AmeriVest
Black Canyon Inc. and Greenwich Capital Financial Products Inc. dated September 19, 2003.

Promissory Note by AmeriVest Centerra Inc., AmeriVest Parkway Inc., and AmeriVest Black
Canyon Inc. to Greenwich Capital Financial Products Inc. dated September 19, 2003.

AmeriVest Properties Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.22 of Amerdist’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2/A filed with the SEC on
May 29, 2003 (Registration No. 333-105183).

Severance Agreement and Release between AmeriVest Properties Inc. and D. Scott Ikenberry

Unsecured Revolving Credit Agreement among AmeriVest Properties Inc. and Fleet National
Bank, as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto, dated December 15, 2003.

Revolving Credit Note by AmeriVest Properties Inc. to Fleet National Bank, as agent, dated
December 15, 2003.

First Amendment to Unsecured Revolving Credit Agreement between AmeriVest Properties
Inc. and Fleet National Bank, as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto, dated
March 16, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of AmeriVest’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 10, 2004.
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Number

Description

10.12D

10.12E

10.12F

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18A

10.18B

10.18C

10.19A

10.19B

First Amended and Restated Unsecured Revolving Credit Agreement by and among
AmeriVest Properties Inc., KeyBank National Association, as Administrative Agent, and
others, as of October 20, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of AmeriVest’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 26, 2004.

First Amendment to First Amended and Restated Unsecured Revolving Credit Agreement by
and among AmeriVest Properties Inc., KeyBank National Association, dated as of March 16,
2005.

Third Amendment to Revolving Credit Agreement among AmeriVest Properties In¢c. and
KeyBank National Association, as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto, dated
as of March 16, 2005.

Contract of Sale between LSF Presidio Investment I, LLC and AmeriVest Camelback Inc.
dated January 15, 2004. (Camelback Lakes)

Termination of Advisory Agreement between AmeriVest Properties Inc. and Sheridan Realty
Advisors, LLC dated December 27, 2002, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
AmeriVest’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 7, 2003.

Amended Revolving Line of Credit Agreement dated March 11, 2002 between AmeriVest
Properties Inc. and Sheridan Investments, LLC. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13B
of AmeriVest’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2001 filed
with the SEC on April 1, 2002.

Consulting Agreement is made and entered into as of December 31, 2003 between AmeriVest
Properties Inc. and Alexander S. Hewitt. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of
AmeriVest’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 10, 2004.

AmeriVest Properties Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors and Executives,
effective September 14, 2004.

Mortgage note in the principal amount of $16,000,000 between AmeriVest Camelback
Incorporated and Allstate Life Insurance Company of New York dated August 19, 2004.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of AmeriVest’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed with the SEC on November 35, 2004.

Mortgage note in the principal amount of $5,000,000 between AmeriVest Camelback
Incorporated and Allstate Life Insurance Company of New York dated August 19, 2004.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of AmeriVest’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed with the SEC on November 5, 2004.

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases, Rents and Contracts, Security Agreement and Fixture
Filing between AmeriVest Camelback Incorporated, Chicago Title Insurance Company and
Allstate Life Insurance Company of New York, dated August 19, 2004. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of AmeriVest’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC
on November 5, 2004.

Change in Control Agreement between AmeriVest Properties Inc. and William T. Atkins,
dated December 7, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of AmeriVest’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 10, 2004.

Change in Control Agreement between AmeriVest Properties Inc. and John B. Greenman,
dated December 7, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of AmeriVest’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 10, 2004.
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10.19C Change in Control Agreement between AmeriVest Properties Inc. and Kathryn L. Hale, dated
December 7, 2004, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of AmeriVest’s Current Report

on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 10, 2004.

10.19D Change in Control Agreement between AmeriVest Properties Inc. and Charles K. Knight,
dated December 7, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of AmeriVest’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 10, 2004.

121 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Share
Dividends

21 Subsidiaries of AmeriVest Properties Inc.

23 Consent of KPMG LLP

311 Section 302 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Section 302 Certifications of Chief Financial Officer

32

Section 906 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
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